
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Washoe County District Board of Health 

Date and Time of Meeting:   Thursday, December 18, 2014, 1:00 p.m. 
 

Place of Meeting:     Washoe County Health District 
1001 East Ninth Street, Building B 
South Auditorium 
Reno, Nevada  89512 

All items numbered or lettered below are hereby designated for possible action as if the words “for possible action” 
were written next to each item (NRS 241.020). An item listed with asterisk (*) next to it is an item for which no 
action will be taken. 

 
Time/ 
Item 

Agenda Item Presenter 

1:00 
p.m.  
*1. 

Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Invitation 

Mr. Matt Smith 

*2. Roll Call 
 

Ms. Dawn Spinola 

*3. Public Comment  
Limited to three (3) minutes per person.  No action may be taken. 
 

Mr. Matt Smith 

4. Approval of Agenda  
December 18, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 

Mr. Matt Smith 

5. Approval of Draft Minutes  
November 20, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 

Mr. Matt Smith 

*6. Recognitions  
A. Years of Service  

1. Irene Ramos-Hernandez - 20 years, hired 12/5/1994 – CCHS 
2. Dale Brice - 20 years, hired 12/6/1994 – CCHS 
3. Jeff Jeppson - 5 years, hired 12/7/2009 - EHS 

Mr. Kevin Dick 
Mr. Matt Smith 

 
 
 

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada 89512 

P.O. Box 11130, Reno, Nevada  89520 
Telephone   775.328-2400 • Fax   775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health 

Kevin Dick 
District Health Officer 

 
Leslie Admirand 

Deputy District Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Matt Smith, Chair 
Kitty Jung, Vice Chair 
Denis Humphreys, OD 

Neoma Jardon 
George Hess, MD 
David Silverman 

Julia Ratti 
 
 
 

 



Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

B. New Hires 
1. Chantelle Batton - Environmental Health Specialist Trainee 

I, hired 12/1/14 – EHS 
2. Victoria Nicolson-Hornblower – Public Health Nurse I, 

Promoted to Full Time from Intermittent Hourly 12/15/14 - 
CCHS 

3. Nicole Kleine – Public Health Nurse I, Promoted to Full 
Time from Intermittent Hourly 12/15/14 - CCHS 

C. Recognition of Achievements 
1. Ruth Castillo, Washoe County Excellence in Public 

Service Certificate  
2. Nicole Alberti, University of Minnesota Performance 

Improvement Certificate 
D. Retirements 

1. Margot Jordan, 11/4/85 - 01/02/2015 – CCHS 
E. Board Retirements 

1. Matt Smith, member since 1/22/03, Chair from 1/27/11 to 
12/18/14 

 
 
 
 
 
 

7. Resolution 
Nevada Breastfeeding Welcomed Here 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 
Mr. Matt Smith 

8. Consent Agenda  
Matters which the District Board of Health may consider in one 
motion.  Any exceptions to the Consent Agenda must be stated 
prior to approval. 

A. Air Quality Management Cases 
1. Recommendation to Uphold Citations Not Appealed to the 

Air Pollution Control Hearing Board: 

a. Lennar Reno LLC – NOV No. 5436, Case No. 1167 

B. Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements  
1. Ratification of Interlocal Agreement between the Washoe 

County Health District and the University of Nevada School 
of Medicine Integrated Clinical Services, Inc. and 
University of Nevada School of Medicine Multispecialty 
Group Practice North, Inc. to provide medical director 
services for the Family Planning clinic in the total amount of 
$9,000 per year for the period November 1, 2014 through 
June 30, 2015 unless extended by the mutual agreement of 
the Parties; ratification by the governing bodies shall be a 

 
 
 
 

Ms. Charlene Albee 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Patsy Buxton 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

condition precedent to its entry into force; and if approved, 
authorize the Chairman to execute the Interlocal Agreement; 
Authorization of travel and travel reimbursements for non-
County employee(s) to be determined by the School, in the 
amount not to exceed $1,500. 

2. Approval of Notice of Subgrant Award from the Division of 
Public and Behavioral Health for the period October 1, 2014 
to September 30, 2015 in the amount of $1,062,144 in 
support of the Women, Infants and Children (WIC) Grant 
Program IO 10031; and if approved, authorize the Chairman 
to execute. 

3. Approve amendments totaling an increase of $69,151 in 
both revenue and expense to the FY15 Advancing 
Conformance with the Voluntary National Retail Food 
Regulatory Grant Program (VNRFRPS), IO 11088. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Erin Dixon 
 

9. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority  
A. Review and Acceptance of the REMSA Operations Reports for 

October, 2014. 

*B. Update of REMSA’s Community Activities During October, 
2014 

 

Mr. Jim Gubbels 
 
 
 
 
 

10. Discussion and possible reappointment of Jim Begbie as the 
Consumer at Large District Board of Health Appointed 
Representative to the REMSA Board of Directors and possible 
appointment of a Member of the Accounting Profession District 
Board of Health Appointed Representative to the REMSA 
Board of Directors 
 

Ms. Christina Conti 

11. Presentation and Possible Acceptance of 2015 Washoe County 
District Board of Health Meeting Calendar  
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

12. Presentation, discussion and possible approval of proposed new 
Washoe County Health District Logo 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

13. Acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund Financial 
Review for Fiscal Year 2015 year to date November 30, 2014 
 

Ms. Anna Heenan 

14. Discussion, acknowledgement and possible direction to staff 
given status quo financial projections for the Health District 
Fund and the next steps in preparation of the Fiscal Year 2015-
2016 Budget Process 

Ms. Anna Heenan 



Time/ 
Item Agenda Item Presenter 

15. Discussion, acknowledge and possible direction to staff on the 
recommended cost analysis and methodology for the Health 
District Administration to conduct a cost analysis of all Health 
District programs – Fundamental Review Recommendation #10 
 

Ms. Anna Heenan 

16. Presentation, discussion, possible Board input and direction to 
staff to monitor and act upon 2015 Legislative Session identified 
topics of interest and Bill Draft Requests affecting the Health 
District and to submit a monthly staff legislative status report 
providing an update on legislative actions and Health District 
positions during the legislative session 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

*17. Staff Reports and Program Updates 
A. Director, Air Quality Management  

EPA Proposes New Ozone Ambient Air Quality Standards; 
Divisional Update – Monitoring & Planning and Permitting 

B. Director, Community and Clinical Health Services  
Divisional Update, Program Reports 

C. Director, Environmental Health Services  
Food, Vector-Borne Disease, Waste Management and EHS 
Inspections / Permits / Plan Review 

D. Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness  
Communicable Disease, Public Health Preparedness, and 
Emergency Medical Services 

E. District Health Officer, Office of the District Health Officer  
Integrated Emergency Management Course, REMSA/EMS, 
Ebola Preparedness, Regional Business License and Permits 
Program, Community Health Needs Assessment, Fundamental 
Review, Staffing, Other Events & Activities and Health District 
Media Contacts 
 

 
 

Ms. Charlene Albee 
 
 

Mr. Steve Kutz 
 
 

Mr. Robert Sack 
 
 
 

Dr. Randall Todd 
 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

*18. Board Comment  
Limited to announcements or issues for future agendas. 
 

Mr. Matt Smith 

19. Emergency Items 
 

Mr. Kevin Dick 

*20. Public Comment  
Limited to three (3) minutes per person.  No action may be taken. 
 

Mr. Matt Smith 

21. Adjournment Mr. Matt Smith 



____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Business Impact Statement:  A Business Impact Statement is available at the Washoe County Health District for those items 
denoted with a “$.” 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, combined with other items, withdrawn from the agenda,  moved to the agenda of 
another later meeting; moved to or from the Consent section, or they may be voted on in a block.  Items with a specific time 
designation will not be heard prior to the stated time, but may be heard later.  Items listed in the Consent section of the agenda are 
voted on as a block and will not be read or considered separately unless withdrawn from the Consent. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
The District Board of Health Meetings are accessible to the disabled.  Disabled members of the public who require special 
accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to notify Administrative Health Services in writing at the Washoe 
County Health District, PO Box 1130, Reno, NV 89520-0027, or by calling 775.328.2416, 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Time Limits:  Public comments are welcomed during the Public Comment periods for all matters whether listed on the agenda or 
not.  All comments are limited to three (3) minutes per person.  Additionally, public comment of three (3) minutes per person 
may be heard during individual action items on the agenda.  Persons are invited to submit comments in writing on the agenda 
items and/or attend and make comment on that item at the Board meeting.  Persons may not allocate unused time to other 
speakers. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Response to Public Comments: The Board of Health can deliberate or take action only if a matter has been listed on an agenda 
properly posted prior to the meeting.  During the public comment period, speakers may address matters listed or not listed on the 
published agenda.  The Open Meeting Law does not expressly prohibit responses to public comments by the Board of Health.  
However, responses from the Board members to unlisted public comment topics could become deliberation on a matter without 
notice to the public.  On the advice of legal counsel and to ensure the public has notice of all matters the Board of Health will 
consider, Board members may choose not to respond to public comments, except to correct factual inaccuracies, ask for Health 
District Staff action or to ask that a matter be listed on a future agenda.  The Board of Health may do this either during the public 
comment item or during the following item:  “Board Comments – Limited to Announcement or Issues for future Agendas.”  
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Pursuant to NRS 241.020, Notice of this meeting was posted at the following locations: 
 
Washoe County Health District, 1001 E. 9th St., Reno, NV 
Reno City Hall, 1 E. 1st St., Reno, NV   
Sparks City Hall, 431 Prater Way, Sparks, NV 
Washoe County Administration Building, 1001 E. 9th St, Reno, NV 
Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health 
State of Nevada Website: https://notice.nv.gov 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

 

Supporting materials are available to the public at the Washoe County Health District located at 1001 E. 9th Street, in Reno, 
Nevada.  Ms. Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary to the District Board of Health is the person designated by the Washoe 
County District Board of Health to respond to requests for supporting materials.  Ms. Spinola is located at the Washoe County 
Health District and may be reached by telephone at (775) 328-2415 or by email at dspinola@washoecounty.us.  Supporting 
materials are also available at the Washoe County Health District Website www.washoecounty.us/health  pursuant to the 
requirements of NRS 241.020. 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

http://www.washoecounty.us/health
https://notice.nv.gov/
mailto:dspinola@washoecounty.us
http://www.washoecounty.us/health


WASHOE COUNTY 
DISTRICT BOARD OF HEALTH 
MEETING MINUTES
Members Thursday, November 20, 2014 
Matt Smith, Chair 1:00 p.m. 
Kitty Jung, Vice Chair 
Dr. Denis Humphreys 
Neoma Jardon Washoe County Administration Complex 
Julia Ratti Health District South Conference Room 
Dr. George Hess 1001 East Ninth Street 
David Silverman Reno, NV 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

The Washoe County District Board of Health met in regular session on Thursday, November 
20, 2014, in the Health Department South Conference Room, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, 
Nevada.   

1. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance
Chair Smith called the meeting to order at 1:05 p.m.
Commissioner Jung led the pledge to the flag.

______________________________________________________________________________ 

2. Roll Call
The following members and staff were present:

Members present: Chair Matt Smith
Vice Chair Kitty Jung 
Dr. Denis Humphreys 
Dr. George Hess 
Julia Ratti  

Members absent: David Silverman 
Neoma Jardon  

Staff present: Randall Todd, DrPH, Director, EPHP, Acting District Health Officer 
Leslie Admirand, Deputy District Attorney 
Charlene Albee, Division Director, AQM 
Steve Kutz, Division Director, CCHS 
James English, Supervisor, EHS 
Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer, AHS 
Erin Dixon, Fiscal Compliance Officer, AHS 
Kelli Goatley-Seals, Health Educator Coordinator, CCHS 
Brittany Dayton, EMS Coordinator, EPHP 
Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary/Recording Secretary, ODHO 

Post Office Box 11130, Reno, NV  89520-0027 – 1001 E. Ninth St., Reno, NV  89512 
Telephone:  775.328.2415 – Fax:  775.328.3752 

www.washoecounty.us/health/ 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.



3. Public Comment
As there was no one wishing to speak, Chair Smith closed the public comment period.

______________________________________________________________________________ 

4. Approval of Agenda
Dr. Humphreys moved to approve the agenda for the November 20, 2014, District

Board of Health meeting.  Councilmember Ratti seconded the motion which carried five in 
favor and none against. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

5. Approval of Draft Minutes
Chair Smith abstained from voting as he had not been present at the October meeting.

Councilmember Ratti moved to approve the minutes of the October 23, 2014 District
Board of Health regular meeting as written.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion which carried 
four in favor and none against. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

6. Recognitions
Presented by Dr. Todd and Chair Smith

A. Years of Service and Excellence in Public Service Certificate Program
1. Ruth Castillo - 10 years, hired 10/09/04 – CCHS

Dr. Todd announced Ms. Castillo’s accomplishments and presented her with a
Certificate of Appreciation. 

B. Years of Service 
1. Ana Gonzalez – 15 years, hired 11/12/1999 – CCHS

Dr. Todd announced Ms. Gonzalez’ accomplishment and presented her with a
Certificate of Appreciation. 

C. New Hires  

1. Christine Cifelli – P/T Advanced Practitioner of Nursing, hired 11/3/14 – CCHS
Ms. Cifelli was not in attendance.

D. Recognition of Achievement 
Presented by Ms. Julie Hunter 

1. Alliance for Climate Education
Ms. Hunter explained the ACE had developed and implemented an Idle Free Schools

program as part of Safe Routes to Schools. 
Student and ACE Fellow Alicia Wong thanked the program partners, explained how 

the program had evolved and reviewed its successes.  
The Board and audience congratulated the representatives with a round of applause.  

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

November 20, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 2 of 10 



7. Proclamation
World AIDS Day

Jennifer Howell accepted the proclamation. 

Dr. Hess moved to approve the proclamation.  Councilmember Ratti seconded the 
motion which was approved five in favor and none against.   

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
8. Consent Agenda

A. Air Quality Management Cases

1. Recommendation to Uphold Citations Not Appealed to the Air Pollution Control
Hearing Board:

a. Advanced Installations – NOV No. 5360, Case No. 1166
B. Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements 

1. Approve Notice of Subgrant Award for the period August 1, 2014 through July 31,
2015 in the total amount of $140,000 in support of the Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention (CDC) Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity (ELC) Federal Grant
Program, IO 10984; Approve amendments totaling an increase of $2,351 in both
revenue and expense to the FY15 CDC Epidemiology and Laboratory Capacity
Federal Grant Program, IO 10984; and if approved authorize the Chairman to
execute.

2. Approve amendments totaling an increase of $63,773 in both revenue and expense to
the FY15 CDC Public Health Preparedness – BP2 Carry-Over Federal Grant
Program, IO TBA.

3. Authorization of travel and travel reimbursements for non-County employees in
the approximate amount of $7,259, supported by the grant award (IO-20385).

4. Authorization of travel and travel reimbursements for non-County employees John
Packham, PhD and three, to be determined, community leaders from other Northern
Nevada counties in the approximate amount of $5,177, supported by the grant award
(IO-20385).

Councilmember Ratti moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.
Commissioner Jung seconded the motion which was approved five in favor and 
none against.   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

9. Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority
Presented by Mr. Jim Gubbels

A. Acceptance of the Correction of the August, 2014 ground service fee averages, presented
during the October, 2014 meeting. 

November 20, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 3 of 10 



 

B. Acceptance of the REMSA Operations Reports for September, 2014 as presented at the 
October, 2014 meeting. 

Mr. Gubbels presented the items, noting they had not been approved when presented at 
the October, 2014 meeting due to an administrative error.   

Councilmember Ratti moved to approve the correction and reports.  Dr. Hess seconded 
the motion which was approved five in favor and none against.   

Mr. Gubbels explained that, due to the compressed meeting schedule to accommodate the 
holidays, the October report will be presented in December and the November and December 
reports will be presented in January.   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

10. Acknowledgement of the receipt of the Health District Fund Financial Review for Fiscal 
Year 2015 year to date October, 2014 
Staff Representative: Ms. Heenan 

Ms. Heenan presented the Financial Review.  

Dr. Hess noted the negative numbers and the fact the anticipated annual deficits were 
already looming.  He asked if it would be necessary to make adjustments to get through the 
fiscal year.  Ms. Heenan stated she would be bringing a three-year forecast to the Board next 
month.  She noted the adopted budget did contain deficits which would lead to the District 
being out of cash within a year.  She acknowledged it was a situation that needed to be 
addressed, but opined it did not require immediate action as the fund balances for this fiscal 
year and the next fiscal year would sustain the District in the meantime.   

Ms. Heenan explained revised fees would help reduce the deficit by increasing revenues 
and the cost-benefit analysis will assist in guiding expenditure reductions.   

Commissioner Jung moved to approve the review as presented.  Councilmember Ratti 
seconded the motion which was approved five in favor and none against.   
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

11. Presentation, discussion and possible direction to staff responsible for District Board of 
Health Committees and Advisory Boards with vacancies to conduct a search for 
replacements and present the names of potential appointees to the Board for 
consideration and selection. 
Staff Representative: Dr. Todd for Mr. Kevin Dick 

Dr. Todd presented the staff report.  Dr. Hess asked which three Committees and Advisory 
Boards were being addressed.  Ms. Spinola explained they were the Sewage, Wastewater and 
Sanitation Hearing Board, the Food Protection Hearing and Advisory Board and the Air 
Pollution Control Hearing Board.  She noted the EMS Advisory Board should be added to the 
list as the DBOH was responsible for appointing two of the members.   

Chair Smith opined it was a good idea for staff to conduct the searches and bring the names 
of the potential appointees to the Board.   

Dr. Hess suggested Board members may wish to have input regarding the selection of the 
appointee.  Mr. English explained that the current process involved staff soliciting volunteers 

 
November 20, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 4 of 10 



 

from the public.  If that is unsuccessful the position is advertised in the newspaper.  Dr. Todd 
opined there was nothing in the staff report that would preclude a Board member from 
suggesting a candidate.  Chair Smith supported that statement.   

Commissioner Jung opined it should be a Board policy that the vacancies are always 
advertised, as they are public bodies.  She explained that was a County-wide policy for all 
public bodies as it constituted a public notice.  Chair Smith agreed the openings should be 
advertised and it should be an open, public process.   

Councilmember Ratti moved to empower staff to initiate recruitment processes 
whenever they have a vacancy.  As part of the recruitment process, any Board position 
will be publicly announced and advertised.  The Board of Health will be notified the 
vacancy is open.  Dr. Hess seconded the motion which was approved five in favor and 
none against.   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

12. Discussion and possible direction to staff regarding new fees associated with Health 
District activities that are not currently on the Fee Schedule and beginning the process 
of updating of the existing fee schedule with the most current salaries, benefits, and 
indirect cost rates that have been approved for Fiscal Year 2015 
Staff Representative: Ms. Dixon 

Ms. Dixon presented the staff report, pointing out changes made based on Board requests.  
In particular, Item 7 had been split out into two categories.  She explained data had been 
collected regarding the number of permits held by the Washoe County School District 
(WCSD), how much they pay in fees and the number of staff hours expended on required 
inspections.  Data had also been collected regarding the number of hours spent on 
Epidemiological investigations.  She clarified staff would appreciate direction regarding 
which if any of the proposed fees the Board would like staff to take out for public comment, 
as well as moving forward with updating the fees based on the most current salaries, benefits, 
and indirect cost rates. 

At Dr. Hess’ request, Ms. Dixon explained the proposed fee involves charging for school 
inspections.  NRS requires two per year, so for the first nine months of the year, staff has put 
498.5 hours into the inspections.  School kitchen permits net $30,171 annually.  WCSD Air 
Quality permits net $18,326.  Ms. Dixon listed some other public agencies that pay fees to 
the District; they included Washoe County, City of Reno and City of Sparks.   

Councilmember Ratti summarized, clarifying that the agenda item requests that the Board 
direct staff to take the fees to the public and stakeholders for input and then bring that input 
back to the Board.  It is not an approval of the fees.  Ms. Dixon stated that was all correct.   

Chair Smith stated that if the fees were to be presented to the public the Board should be 
in agreement with them so staff time was not wasted.  If they were going to have a problem 
with one or any of them he would prefer it or they be pulled.   

Councilmember Ratti stated she believed in the public input process.  She was 
comfortable with the fees, but something presented during public input may change her 
mind.  As a governing Board member, her job was to have an open mind in case someone 
presented something she had not personally contemplated.  She stated she will not guarantee 
to vote for the fees after they go through the public process but absolutely wanted the input. 

 
November 20, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 5 of 10 



Dr. Hess stated he still had reservations but was going along with the proposed fees based 
on how they had been rephrased.  He agreed the Board needed the feedback.   

Councilmember Ratti pointed out that fee increases were not generally enthusiastically 
supported.  Even in the face of strong opposition, if the District needs the revenue in order to 
be able to deliver the services, the Board needed to go forward with the fees.  She reiterated 
that occasionally the fee payers are being subsidized by the taxpayers and that should be part 
of the overall discussion. 

Dr. Hess stated he felt it is the District’s job to investigate outbreaks, and instead of 
investigation fees, the offenders should be charged for repeat inspections and reopening.  Ms. 
Dixon explained staff had expended 1,105.5 hours on those types of investigations.  The 
Health District would likely not have requested reimbursement for any of them.  

Dr. Humphreys opined the process was appropriate, and agreed with the need for public 
input.  He pointed out staff had done what the Board directed, which was to look at the fee 
calculations based on cost recovery.  That also helps the process of standardizing how fees 
are established and enforced.   

Commissioner Jung opined that taxpayers should not be subsidizing fee payers.  She 
encouraged staff to remind industry that the Board had decided to allow them to take a fee 
holiday, even though the District had been in a tremendous deficit situation.  She did not 
believe they had ever done what the Board had asked them to do, which was to take 
advantage of the free advertising at their national levels regarding the benefits of doing 
business in the county to help drum up some more business.  She requested staff look into 
what industry did to validate that and bring it back to the Board.   

Commissioner Jung pointed out the Fundamental Review had identified the fees as an 
area of revenue generation. She stated it was important to her that the District arrives at a 
sustainable position so staff can be supported to provide the services.  The only other 
alternative to balance the budget was to eliminate positions.  All other avenues had been 
pursued and implemented.   

Commissioner Jung opined that if the Board was not going to work in a unified manner 
on this issue it would be a waste of tax money to continue to pursue it.  She felt the new 
Board members should be educated at the earliest possible opportunity regarding the history 
and issues surrounding the topic.  She noted Board action in the past had been stymied by 
reluctance to enact unpopular steps and stated she was prepared to stand firm.  She reiterated 
some had been given a fee holiday and been subsidized by the taxpayers.  The Recession has 
ended and industry has expanded in some areas, so there is no reason not to ask for higher 
fees.   

Chair Smith agreed, clarifying that unless there was something they were fundamentally 
morally, totally against, the Board needs to move forward together.   

Ms. Dixon explained the timeline was to go to the public in January and bring the fees 
back to the Board in February or March, to be effective July 1.  Councilmember Ratti stated 
she would like the District Health Officer to contemplate how to educate new Board 
members prior to the fee meeting.  Chair Smith stated he would not be opposed to meeting 
with his replacement for that purpose.   

November 20, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 6 of 10 



Chair Smith asked how the public meetings would be conducted, opining they had not 
been well-advertised in the past, which led to substantial attendance and input at the public 
fee Board meeting.  He noted the Fundamental Review had encouraged collaboration with 
the community, and it was important for the stakeholders to provide the input in advance. 
Ms. Dixon noted those conversations had already begun with some of the leadership groups. 
Any impacted permit holder would also receive an informational postcard regarding the 
meetings.   

Commissioner Jung opined all notification efforts were valuable.  She agreed with the 
value of building open, transparent relationships and providing understandable explanations 
about what was being proposed.   

Chair Smith suggested this was an ongoing, contentious item.  Councilmember Ratti 
noted that there had been discussion about why the fee schedule was changed annually, as 
opposed to being established with an automatic annual increase and reviewed in depth once 
every five years.  The annual process was challenging for the Board, staff and the business 
community.  Ms. Dixon explained that was part of the goals being set for the 2017 budget 
year.   

Councilmember Ratti moved to direct staff to present to the community the proposed 
new fees and bring back to the Board the fees for consideration and possible adoption into 
the current fee schedule and begin the process of updating the fee schedule with the most 
current salaries, benefits and indirect cost rates that have approved for Fiscal Year 2015.  
Commissioner Jung seconded the motion which was approved five in favor and none 
against.   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

13. Staff Reports and Program updates
A. Director, Air Quality Management 

Ms. Albee stated she had nothing to add but was available to answer questions. 

B. Director, Community and Clinical Health Services 
Mr. Kutz stated he had nothing to add, but noted Kelli Seals had joined him, she was the 

author of the Chronic Disease Prevention program update and was available to answer 
questions, as was he.   

Dr. Humphreys noted the numbers of overweight and obese children had experienced 
little change over the past 10 years.  He stated he was aware of numerous outreach programs 
that had been conducted and asked what the thoughts were regarding future outcomes.   

Ms. Seals stated the data had been collected through WCSD, as they were legislatively 
mandated to do so.  One concern is there has not been enough programming in answer to the 
data.  It is known where the problems are, but there has not been any funding to directly 
address them within the community.  While there has not been grant funding awarded to 
address childhood obesity, staff has applied for grant funds and have used the WCSD BMI 
data in these grant applications.  CCHS staff have implemented out-of-school time and 
voluntary wellness policies, and they are working with child care centers to address wellness, 
but do not have steady funding to address the issues. 

November 20, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 7 of 10 



Dr. Humphreys noted those challenges led to diabetes, which is at epidemic proportions 
among the school-age population.   

Ms. Seals pointed out the legislation that calls for the collection of the data within the 
school district is set to sunset in 2015.  Staff will work to try to get it extended.  

Commissioner Jung suggested staff ask why the legislature mandated the data be 
collected while the children were in the fourth grade, as opposed to earlier.  Ms. Seals noted 
that was when other tests were done, such as eyesight and scoliosis, and opined it was done 
at the same time as a convenience.  Commissioner Jung suggested staff encourage the 
legislature to consider mandating the data collection times based on science that indicates 
when intervention may be more effective.   

In response to a question raised by Dr. Hess regarding delays in training and 
implementation, Mr. Kutz explained some recent challenges with the software vendor and 
how they were being addressed.   

C. Director, Environmental Health Services 
Mr. English stated he had nothing to add, but was available to answer any questions.  

Dr. Hess asked if the mosquito problem in Kiley Ranch was being addressed.  Mr. 
English explained they were working with the developers, the City of Sparks and the Land 
Users Development Group through the Builders Association of Northern Nevada to form a 
plan regarding mitigation efforts.   

Commissioner Jung asked if there were any fines or fees that could be levied to the 
developer in the future if they built without proper approvals and then expected the county to 
provide mosquito treatment.  Mr. English offered to research it and bring it back to the 
Board.   

Councilmember Ratti explained Kiley Ranch Preserve was a charitable non-profit that 
was put in place to preserve the wetlands area and save it from development.  The 
development plans are not near the wetlands.  She asked if the District was negotiating more 
with the Wetlands group than the developer and Mr. English stated he believed so.  He added 
they were also working with the developer to try to mitigate risks to the public because the 
wetlands were still fairly close.  Councilmember Ratti pointed out the developers had no 
influence over the wetlands.   

Commissioner Jung noted the information about the conservation group was a helpful 
clarification, but the developer needed to make decisions that protected the homeowners so 
they did not ultimately place the responsibility for mosquito control on the Health District. 
She requested a report on what the developer did or did not do based on staff 
recommendations to protect the population and what the District could do in the future if it 
was asked to mitigate a pre-identified health risk.   

Councilmember Ratti pointed out the wetlands existed prior to development, so the 
wetlands were not the problem, it was the encroachment.  She was unsure of what the 
developer could do to mitigate.  Commissioner Jung suggested they should not build there; it 
was another example of industry asking taxpayers to subsidize.  Mr. English stated he would 
provide a report that contained the guidelines or conditions provided as part of the 
developer’s approval and that they were met.   

November 20, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 8 of 10 



Councilmember Ratti requested the report include the history of the entire Kiley Ranch 
project and if everything was done by the City or the developer as it should have been at the 
Master Project stage.   

D. Director, Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness 
Dr. Todd pointed out the number of influenza-like illnesses were below threshold but 

deaths were above.  The number of deaths indicates the severity.  The statistics can appear to 
fluctuate quite a bit because they are based on small numbers.  Early numbers in the season 
do not provide any kind of reliable estimate for how severe the remainder of the season will 
be.   

The REMSA Board vacancy has been posted and staff will bring the names of 
candidate(s) to the DBOH for selection and appointment.  Ms. Dayton explained it was 
posted on the Health District website and Twitter.  The deadline is December 5.  The 
departing Board member has provided three recommendations for his replacement. 
Commissioner Jung asked if staff could possibly find a way to advertise the position with a 
local accounting group or organization.   

The EMS Program staff has elected not to include their contact information on the 
REMSA billing, as patients with questions should be contacting REMSA directly.   

E. District Health Officer, Office of the District Health Officer 
Dr. Todd stated he had nothing to add, but was available to answer any questions.  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

14. Board Comment
None.

______________________________________________________________________________ 

15. Emergency Items
None.

______________________________________________________________________________ 

16. *Public Comment 
As there was no one wishing to speak, Chair Smith closed the public comment period. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
17. Adjournment

At 2:11 p.m., Commissioner Jung moved to adjourn.  Councilmember Ratti seconded
the motion which was approved five in favor and none against.  
Respectfully submitted, 

Randall Todd for 
Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
Secretary to the District Board of Health 

November 20, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 9 of 10 



Dawn Spinola, Administrative Secretary 
Recording Secretary 

Approved by Board in session on _____________, 2014. 

November 20, 2014 Washoe County District Board of Health Meeting Minutes   Page 10 of 10 



Resolution 
WHEREAS the Nevada Breastfeeding Welcomed Here Campaign encourages 
public health and businesses working collaboratively to protect, promote, and 
support breastfeeding; and 

WHEREAS our community strives to make breastfeeding the norm for infant and 
young child feeding; and 

WHEREAS breastfeeding is a proven strategy, protecting infants and mothers 
from chronic and acute diseases, and helps build a foundation for life-long health; 
and 

WHEREAS breastfeeding provides a safe and reliable food source, especially 
during natural disasters and emergencies; and  

WHEREAS all major medical authorities recommend that mothers breastfeed 
exclusively for six months; and 

WHEREAS The Surgeon General’s Call to Action to Support Breastfeeding, calls 
on health care providers, employers, insurers, policymakers, researchers, and the 
community at large to support mothers in reaching breastfeeding goals; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that on this 18th day of December, 
2014, the Washoe County District Board of Health does hereby welcome and 
encourage breastfeeding for new mothers and infants within the Health District. 

_________________________________ 
A. M. Smith III, Chairman 
Washoe County District Board of Health 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  December 18, 2014 

DATE:  December 2, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Charlene Albee, Director, Air Quality Management Division 
(775) 784-7211, calbee@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Recommendation for the Board to uphold a citation not appealed to the Air Pollution 
Control Hearing Board issued to Lennar Reno LLC Case No. 1167, Unappealed Citation No. 5436 with a 
$10,000.00 negotiated fine. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

Air Quality Management Division Staff recommends Citation No. 5436 be upheld and a fine of 
$10,000.00 be levied against Lennar Reno LLC for violation of Section 030.2175, specifically a violation 
of the conditional Dust Control Permit No. DCP14-0063, condition No. 1, which stipulates: “The required 
number of water trucks will be assigned and available for operation 24 HOURS A DAY 7 DAYS A 
WEEK for the purpose of water application for the control of fugitive dust”.  Dust Control Permit No. 
DCP14- 0063 stipulates four (4) water trucks are required for the project as proposed.  Failure to control 
fugitive dust per the dust permit conditions constitutes a major violation of the District Board of Health 
Regulations Governing Air Quality Management.  This is a negotiated settlement. 

District Health Goal supported by this item: Achieve targeted improvements in health outcomes and 
health equity. 

BACKGROUND 

On Saturday October 25, 2014, at approximately 1:40 p.m., Air Quality Specialist II Joshua Restori 
received a citizen complaint, via the answering service, from Senior Air Quality Specialist Dennis 
Cerfoglio regarding dust blowing at the intersection of Wingfield Springs and Rolling Meadows Drive. 
Specialist Restori called the complainant, Ms. Barbara Wickham, at approximately 1:47 p.m. to discuss the 
nature of the complaint.  Ms. Wickham stated dust was blowing from a construction site adjacent to her 
apartment complex directly into the apartment complex.   

On October 23, 2014 the National Weather Service issued a Wind Advisory for the greater Reno Area for 
October 25th from 8 AM to 11PM.  On the same day the AQMD issued an email to all current dust control 
permit contacts.  Mr. Tim Scheideman from Lennar Reno LLC is on this distribution list. 

Specialist Restori responded to the complaint and arrived on-site at approximately 2:25 p.m. When 
approaching Wingfield Springs from the south on Vista Boulevard, Specialist Restori observed large 
amounts of dust from Lennar Reno LLC’s Pioneer Meadows Village 7B & 7C.  Specialist Restori 
immediately called Mr. Tim Scheideman, Lennar Reno LLC’s Director of Land Management, at 2:38 p.m. 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 784-7200 FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.OurCleanAir.com 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.A.1.a.



December 2, 2014 
DBOH / Lennar Reno LLC. / Case No. 1167 
Page 2 of 2 

and in a voicemail stated there were significant plumes of fugitive dust blowing from Pioneer Meadows 
Village 7B & 7C with no signs of dust control on site.  Specialist Restori then took photographs, from 
various viewpoints, of the fugitive dust at the site.  Mr. Tim Scheideman returned Specialist Restori’s call 
at approximately 3:09 p.m. to discuss the fugitive dust issues stating his contractor had dispatched a water 
truck to the site to apply water.  Specialist Restori continued to observe and monitor the site, at 3:15 p.m. a 
water truck arrived on site and began applying water to the area. 
 
Specialist Restori again called Mr. Tim Scheideman to thank him for his response and to state additional 
water trucks would be needed to control the fugitive dust problem on the site.  Specialist Restori also 
advised Mr. Scheideman he would be issuing Lennar Reno LLC Citation No. 5436 for failure to have 
water trucks on site to control fugitive dust.  It was further determined Lennar Reno LLC had been issued 
two (2) prior Notices of Violation Citations, which were upheld by the Washoe County District Board of 
Health (NOV No. 5151on March 31, 2012 and NOV No. 5376 on March 20, 2013.  Both of these citations 
were for violations of the same permit condition at the above location. 
 
On October 30, 2014, Senior Air Quality Specialist Dennis Cerfoglio and Specialist Joshua Restori met 
with representatives Tim Scheideman and Dustin Barker from Lennar Reno LLC regarding Citation No. 
5436.  After taking into consideration all the facts presented in the case, including the two previous 
citations, and because Meadows Village 7B & 7C were now being palletized, Specialist Cerfoglio 
recommended Citation No. 5436 be upheld with a settlement fine of $10,000.00 dollars.  A Memorandum 
of Understanding was signed by both parties.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There are no fiscal impacts resulting from the Board upholding the issuance of the Notice of Violation 
Citation and associated fine.  All fine money collected is forwarded to the Washoe County School District 
to be used for environmentally focused projects for the benefit of the students.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the Board uphold unappealed Notice of Violation Citation No 5436 issued to Lennar 
Reno LLC with a $10,000.00 negotiated fine.  Alternatives to upholding the citation as presented include: 
 

1. The District Board of Health may determine no violation of the regulations has occurred and 
dismiss Citation No. 5436. 
 

2. The Board may determine to uphold Citation No. 5436 and levy any fine in the range of $0 to 
$10,000.00 per day. 

 
In the event the Board determines to change the penalty, the matter should be continued to allow Mr. 
Scheideman and Mr. Barker to be properly noticed. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
 
Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be: 
 

“Move to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.” 























WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: December 18, 2014 

DATE:  November 20, 2014 

TO:   District Board of Health 

FROM:  Patsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer,  
775-328-2418, pbuxton@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT:  Ratification of Interlocal Agreement between the Washoe County Health District 
and the University of Nevada School of Medicine Integrated Clinical Services, Inc. and 
University of Nevada School of Medicine Multispecialty Group Practice North, Inc. to provide 
medical director services for the Family Planning clinic in the total amount of $9,000 per year 
for the period November 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 unless extended by the mutual 
agreement of the Parties; ratification by the governing bodies shall be a condition precedent to 
its entry into force; and if approved, authorize the Chairman to execute the Interlocal 
Agreement; Authorization of travel and travel reimbursements for non-County employee(s) to 
be determined by the School, in the amount not to exceed $1,500. 

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the Health Officer 
to execute, contracts in excess of $100,000, Interlocal Agreements and amendments to the adopted 
budget.   

District Board of Health strategic priority:  Protect population from health problems and health 
hazards. 

BCC Strategic Objective supported by this item:  Safe, Secure and Healthy Communities. 

It also supports the Washoe County Health District’s Family Planning Program mission to promote 
and assure that all Washoe County citizens have access to confidential, high quality, culturally 
competent reproductive health and family planning services that fosters healthy communities. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
There has been no previous action taken by the Board.  

BACKGROUND 
The Washoe County Health District proposes to enter into a contract with the University of Nevada 
School of Medicine Integrated Clinical Services, Inc. and University of Nevada School of Medicine 
Multispecialty Group Practice North, Inc. for the period November 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 
unless extended by the mutual agreement of the Parties.  The contract rate is $750 per month not to 
exceed $9,000 per year. 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.B.1.

mailto:pbuxton@washoecounty.us


 
 

The Interlocal Agreement provides for a medical director for the Family Planning clinic.  The School 
will also provide consultation with the Family Planning Advanced Practice Registered Nurses 
(APRN) onsite for approximately four (4) hours per month and as needed by telephone, review and 
approve medical charts, provide consultation to the District on issues of family planning, conduct 
clinical examination of clinic patients or perform clinical procedures (IUD insertion) as necessary; 
review and approve the clinical protocols completed by the District’s APRN’s; provide written 
evaluation of services and staff performance on an annual basis or upon request. 
 
The Health District will pay for one contraceptive focused training (Contraceptive technology or other 
approved by us) for the school’s staff not to exceed $1,500 in value. Reimbursement may include 
airfare, hotel, ground transportation, airport parking and mileage to the Reno airport and will follow 
GSA per diem rates consistent with Washoe County travel policy.  
 
Washoe County’s Risk Manager and Deputy District Attorney have reviewed and approved this 
Agreement. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT 
Should the Board approve this Interlocal Agreement, there will no additional impact to the adopted 
FY 15 budget as expenses for this contract were anticipated and projected in the Family Planning 
Grant Program (internal order 10025) under account 710108, MD Consultants. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of Health ratify Interlocal Agreement 
between the Washoe County Health District and the University of Nevada School of Medicine 
Integrated Clinical Services, Inc. and University of Nevada School of Medicine Multispecialty Group 
Practice North, Inc. to provide medical director services for the Family Planning clinic in the total 
amount of $9,000 per year for the period November 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 unless extended 
by the mutual agreement of the Parties; ratification by the governing bodies shall be a condition 
precedent to its entry into force; and if approved, authorize the Chairman to execute the Interlocal 
Agreement; Authorization of travel and travel reimbursements for non-County employee(s) to be 
determined by the School, in the amount not to exceed $1,500. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to approve ratification of Interlocal Agreement between the Washoe County Health District and 
the University of Nevada School of Medicine Integrated Clinical Services, Inc. and University of 
Nevada School of Medicine Multispecialty Group Practice North, Inc. to provide medical director 
services for the Family Planning clinic in the total amount of $9,000 per year for the period November 
1, 2014 through June 30, 2015 unless extended by the mutual agreement of the Parties; ratification by 
the governing bodies shall be a condition precedent to its entry into force; and if approved, authorize 
the Chairman to execute the Interlocal Agreement; Authorization of travel and travel reimbursements 
for non-County employee(s) to be determined by the School, in the amount not to exceed $1,500. 
 
 
 
 















WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: 12/18/14 

DATE:  November 24, 2014 

TO:   District Board of Health 

FROM:  Patsy Buxton, Fiscal Compliance Officer,  
775-328-2418, pbuxton@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT:  Approval of Notice of Subgrant Award from the Division of Public and Behavioral 
Health for the period October 1, 2014 to September 30, 2015 in the amount of $1,062,144 in 
support of the Women, Infants and Children (WIC) Grant Program IO 10031; and if approved, 
authorize the Chairman to execute.  

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the Health Officer 
to execute, contracts in excess of $100,000, Interlocal Agreements and amendments to the adopted 
budget.   

The Washoe County Health District’s WIC program received a Notice of Subgrant Award from the 
Division of Public and Behavioral Health for the period October 1, 2014 to September 30, 2015 in the 
total amount of $1,062,144.  A copy of the Notice of Subgrant Award is attached.     

District Board of Health strategic priority:  Be assured that mandates are met and needed services 
are delivered. 

BCC Strategic Objective supported by this item:  Safe, Secure and Healthy Communities. 

It also supports the Washoe County Health District’s Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for 
Women, Infants and Children (WIC) mission.  It is to provide supplemental nutritious foods, nutrition 
education and referrals to other health and social services to eligible pregnant and postpartum women, 
infants and children up to age five in Washoe County to prevent the occurrence of health problems 
and to improve the health status of these persons. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
The District Board of Health retroactively approved the District Health Officer’s acceptance of 
Subgrant Amendment #3 for the period October 1 ,2012 through September 30, 2014 in the total 
amount of $2,184,496 on September 25, 2014.   

BACKGROUND 
The Washoe County Health District agrees to provide a level of service sufficient to provide WIC 
food instruments to an estimated 5,809 participants per month for a total of 69,708 participants per 
year during the term of this Subgrant Award.   

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.B.2.

mailto:pbuxton@washoecounty.us


 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Should the Board approve this Notice of Subgrant Award there will be no additional fiscal impact to 
the FY15 WIC program budget.  A budget amendment is not necessary at this time as sufficient 
budget authority is available through June 30, 2015. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of Health approve Notice of Subgrant 
Award from the Division of Public and Behavioral Health for the period October 1, 2014 to 
September 30, 2015 in the amount of $1,062,144 in support of the Women, Infants and Children 
(WIC) Grant Program IO 10031; and if approved, authorize the Chairman to execute.  
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to approve Notice of Subgrant Award from the Division of Public and Behavioral Health for 
the period October 1, 2014 to September 30, 2015 in the amount of $1,062,144 in support of the 
Women, Infants and Children (WIC) Grant Program IO 10031; and if approved, authorize the 
Chairman to execute.  
 
 
 











































WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  December 18, 2014 

DATE: December 2, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Erin Dixon, Fiscal Compliance Officer, Washoe County Health District 
775-328-2419, edixon@washoecounty.us 

THROUGH: Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer 

SUBJECT: Approve amendments totaling an increase of $69,151 in both revenue and 
expense to the FY15 Advancing Conformance with the Voluntary National Retail Food 
Regulatory Grant Program (VNRFRPS), IO 11088. 

SUMMARY 
The Washoe County District Board of Health must approve and execute, or direct the Health 
Officer to execute, contracts in excess of $50,000, Interlocal Agreements and amendments to the 
adopted budget. 

District Board of Health strategic priority: Protect population from health problems and health 
hazards. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
There has been no previous action this fiscal year. 

BACKGROUND 
The Washoe County Health District (District) received a Notice of Grant Award from U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services, Food and Drug Administration in the amount of 
$346,500 ($69,300 per year), for the period September 12, 2012 through June 30, 2017 in 
support of the VNRFRPS Grant Program, IO 11088. The program did not expend all Year 2 
funds and carried forward $76,834 for a total FY 15 award of $146,134. A copy of the 
Cooperative Agreement is attached. 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.B.3.

mailto:edixon@washoecounty.us


Subject: Approve FDA Grant Amendments 
Date: December 18, 2014 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Should the Board approve these budget amendments, the adopted FY15 budget will be increased 
by $69,151.00 in the following accounts: 
 
   Amount of 

Account Number  Description Increase/(Decrease) 
2002-IO-11088   -431100 Federal Revenue $69,151 

 -701110 Base Salaries $5,000 
 -710100 Professional Services $36,691 
 -710300 Operating Supplies $2,000 
 -710360 Postage $1,530 
 -710502 Printing ($1,000) 
 -710546 Advertising $1,530 
 -711210 Travel $9,400 
 -711504 Equipment (NonCapital) $14,000 

  Total Expenditures $69,151 
 
The difference between the carry forward award of $76,834 and the budget amendment of 
$69,151 is $7,683 which will be collected in indirect revenue.  No budget adjustment is needed 
for the indirect revenue. 
 
RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of Health approve amendments 
totaling an increase of $69,151 in both revenue and expense to the FY15 Advancing 
Conformance with the Voluntary National Retail Food Regulatory Grant Program (VNRFRPS), 
IO 11088. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to approve amendments totaling an increase of $69,151 in both revenue and expense to the 
FY15 Advancing Conformance with the Voluntary National Retail Food Regulatory Grant 
Program (VNRFRPS), IO 11088. 
 

 

 















DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 9













































































































WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
EPIDEMIOLOGY AND PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS DIVISION

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  December 18, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Christina Conti, EMS Program Manager  
775-326-6042, cconti@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Discussion and possible reappointment of Jim Begbie as the Consumer at Large 
District Board of Health Appointed Representative to the REMSA Board of 
Directors and possible appointment of a Member of the Accounting Profession 
District Board of Health Appointed Representative to the REMSA Board of 
Directors  

SUMMARY 
The REMSA Board of Directors is comprised of seven positions, three of which are District Board of 
Health (DBOH) appointed representatives.  There are currently two appointed positions that are 
requiring appointments by the DBOH.  The first is the Consumer at Large representative, currently 
held by Jim Begbie, Chairman of the REMSA Board; and the second is the member of the accounting 
profession representative, recently vacated by Dick Barnard. 

District Health Strategic Objective supported by this item:  Achieve targeted improvements in 
health outcomes and health equity. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
In 1986, upon the creation of the Franchise agreement for ambulance services in Washoe County, the 
REMSA Board of Directors was created to include the three representatives appointed by the DBOH. 
Since 1986, the DBOH has appointed representatives to the REMSA Board of Directors as positions 
have become vacant.  

BACKGROUND 
During the November 20, 2014 DBOH meeting, EMS staff was directed to conduct an independent 
outreach for an appropriate replacement for the CPA position on the REMSA Board of Directors. 
EMS staff sent out an announcement to the largest firms in Washoe County as well as to the Nevada 
Society of CPAs.  The firms who received an announcement were: Ingenium CPA, CFO Accounting 
Solutions, and Pangborn & Co.  The outreach yielded three additional candidates to accompany the 
previous two submitted from REMSA outgoing Board of Director CPA Dick Barnard.  A summary of 
all five candidates is listed in alphabetical order below. 

Candidate #1 Carlon, Lisa 
Ms. Carlon has been in the field of public accounting since 1995.  Over the years, she has worked with 
CEOs, CFOs, bookkeepers, and advisors. In addition to public accounting, Ms. Carlon has non-profit 
experience and is the currently a Board member for the Nevada Diabetes Association.  The diverse 
background of Ms. Carlon has given her the ability to work successfully with other professionals, 
regardless of their discipline.  Ms. Carlon was submitted by REMSA as a possible DBOH 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 326-6055 FAX (775) 325-8130 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.



Subject: REMSA Board of Directors Appointments 
Date: December 18, 2014  
Page 2 of 3 

appointment.  During her tour of REMSA, Ms. Carlon was impressed with the community 
involvement.  Ms. Carlon is interested in joining the Board to continue working in our community 
with non-profit organizations and utilizing her strengths of being a CPA to further the objectives of the 
organization. 

Candidate #2: Dobrowski, Michael 
Mr. Dobrowski has worked in the accounting field since 1990, having experience in both private 
industry and healthcare.  Mr. Dobrowski has had involvement with Boards of Directors and 
Foundations, providing input on financial strategy and projects.  While the majority of his experience 
is in private industry, Mr. Dubrowski has a firsthand understanding of the healthcare industry from an 
auditors perspective as well as a member of the healthcare team.  Mr. Dobrowski responded to the 
recruitment of EMS staff.  Mr. Dowbroski hasn’t had an opportunity to tour REMSA.  However, he is 
impressed with the image REMSA projects in the community and the service provided to the citizens.  
Mr. Dobrowski is interested in joining the REMSA Board to give back to the community by utilizing 
his experience as a CPA and familiarity of the healthcare industry. 

Candidate #3: Jimenez, Nissa 
Ms. Jimenez has worked in public accounting since 2001.  During her career, Ms. Jimenez has 
participated on audit teams for both government and non-profit agencies, to include NLTFPD, 
REMSA and Tahoe Forest Hospital.  Ms. Jimenez also worked as a volunteer fire/EMT while in 
college in upstate New York, which allowed her the opportunity to help citizens directly and have a 
firsthand understanding of EMS services from both a fire/EMT and ambulance service perspective.  
Ms. Jimenez responded to the recruitment of EMS staff.  During her tour of REMSA, Ms. Jimenez 
was left with a feeling of pride at the opportunity to work with an organization that touches so many 
of our citizen lives.  Ms. Jimenez is interested in joining the REMSA Board to give back to the 
community through volunteerism that highlights her professional skills and her personal interests. 

Candidate #4: Morgan, David 
Mr. Morgan had been a practicing CPA for more than 50 years at Pangborn & Co, retiring this past 
August.  Mr. Morgan has been a Board member of over 10 Boards within Washoe County to include, 
Nevada State Board of Accountancy, Reno-Sparks Chamber of Commerce, EDAWN, and Girls 
Scouts of the Sierra.   His experience in the various community organizations has given Mr. Morgan 
an understanding of both governmental and non-profit financial structures and obligations.  Mr. 
Morgan responded to the recruitment of EMS staff.  During his tour of REMSA, Mr. Morgan was left 
with the enthusiasm for the mission of the organization and feels that as a retired CPA, he could 
dedicate the time to the mission and goals of REMSA.  Mr. Morgan is interested in joining the 
REMSA Board to continue his devotion to public service within our community.   

Candidate #5: Nelson, Tim 
Mr. Nelson is a CPA who has held several financial leadership roles since 1986.  Mr. Nelson has held 
positions of Accountant, Controller, Chief Financial Officer, and Chief Executive Officer.  Mr. Nelson 
has served on the Boards of several community organizations to include, SBA’s Nevada Small 
Business Development Center and the Northern Nevada Chapter of the American Red Cross.  With 
his background, Mr. Nelson has an understanding of public accounting, insurance requirements and 
small business.  Mr. Nelson was submitted by REMSA as a possible DBOH appointment.  During his 
tour of REMSA, Mr. Nelson was impressed by the organizational mission and the services provided 
to citizens.  Mr. Nelson is interested in joining the REMSA Board to assist with ensuring REMSA is 
fiscally sound, transparent to the community and continues to respond to the community. 



Subject: REMSA Board of Directors Appointments 
Date: December 18, 2014  
Page 3 of 3 

Consumer at Large Representative: 
Mr. Jim Begbie was previously appointed by the District Board of Health as the Consumer at Large 
Representative to the REMSA Board of Directors.  Mr. Begbie formerly served as the Administrative 
Health Services Officer for the Health District and was appointed Interim District Health Officer  on 
several occasions. Mr. Begbie was elected as Chariman of the REMSA Board of Directors during the 
past year.  Mr. Begbie’s term has expired.  He is willing to serve another term and to continue in his 
role as Chair of the REMSA Board.   

Each of the five candidates for the CPA Appointed position brings an individual strength that would 
be of benefit to the REMSA Board.  Ms. Carlon brings strength of diverse interactions with other 
professionals.  Mr. Dobrowski brings strength of understanding the intricacies of the healthcare 
industry, having worked for one of the regional hospitals for several years.  Ms. Jimenez brings 
strength of understanding the accounting field as well as the EMS world from her volunteerism.  Mr. 
Morgan brings strength of years of experience and community involvement in various disciplines.  
Mr. Nelson brings strength of a varied background with experience in both insurance brokerage and 
accounting.  One candidate has a working knowledge of EMS but not within Washoe County.   

FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no additional fiscal impact to the FY15 budget should the Board approve the appointments to 
the REMSA Board of Directors. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the reappointment of Jim Begbie as the Consumer at Large District Board of 
Health Appointed Representative to the REMSA Board of Directors and (insert name) as the Member 
of the Accounting Profession District Board of Health Appointed Representative to the REMSA 
Board of Directors”.   

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board be prepared to appoint representatives, a possible motion would be: “Move to 
approve the reappointment of Jim Begbie as the Consumer at Large District Board of Health 
Appointed Representative to the REMSA Board of Directors and (insert name) as the Member of the 
Accounting Profession District Board of Health Appointed Representative to the REMSA Board of 
Directors”.     

































S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 8 9 10 11 12 13 14
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27
26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30

31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 1 1 2 3 4 5

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30

30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 27 28 29 30 31

REGULAR BOARD MEETINGS 4th* Thursday at 1:00 pm in Health District Board Room
*November and December 2014 meetings are scheduled on the 3rd Thursdays due to holidays.

January February March

2015 PROPOSED DISTRICT BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING CALENDAR

April May June

July August September

October November December

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 11.



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: December 18, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Phillip Ulibarri, Public Health Communications Program Manager 
775.328.2414, pulibarri@washoecounty.us 

THROUGH: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
775.328.2416, kdick@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Presentation, discussion and possible approval of proposed new Washoe County 
Health District Logo 

SUMMARY 
Staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of Health (Board) approve the proposed 
new Washoe County Health District Logo. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 

• The Board has discussed branding efforts several times in the past but has not pursued re-
branding due to cost.

BACKGROUND 
The District Health logo is in need of updating for the following reasons: 

• Readability: The current logo is confusing and does not adapt well to size reduction especially
important for internet, mobile phone and Android use.

• Simplification: The WCHD logo usually appears in a very busy environment such as
websites, print and mobile advertising, brochures, and other collateral, where there are many
pieces of information competing for the reader's attention, as well as other "main-message"
campaigns that have their own distinctive logos. Currently our business cards and letterhead
have more information that most corporate stationery packages. By simplifying the District's
logo, the Health Districts mission and other main messages are easier to read.

• Adaptability: The new logo adapts easily and uses the equity and recognition that has already
been established with the National Public Health logo/icon. The new logo also fits well with
other District branding efforts such as Keep It Clean and the programs inclusive of that brand.

• Functionality. The logo type can be reduced to a very small size without losing detail or
readability. It can also be used in one color, reducing costs.

• The current logo was created in-house over 25 years ago by retired environmentalist Skip
Houk. Renditions of the logo with “Washoe County Health Department” versus “Washoe
County Health District” create confusion.

• The current logo as a stand-alone without any text (i.e., Health District) is not identifiable.
1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752

www.washoecounty.us/health 
WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 12.

mailto:pulibarri@washoecounty.us


Subject: New Washoe County Health District Logo 
Date: December 18, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

• The new logo was developed recently to support the Keep It Clean branding being used by Air 
Quality Management Division. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

• There is no fiscal impact to the FY15 budget should the Board approve the approval 
of the new logo. 

• Existing stationary and business cards will be phased out and replaced with new when 
depleted. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Washoe County District Board of Health (Board) approve the proposed 
new Washoe County Health District Logo. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board agree with staff recommendation, a possible motion would be “Move to approve the 
proposed new Washoe County Health District Logo.” 

 



Logo
Option 8

Washoe County Health District
DISTRICT HEALTH

DEPARTMENT



Business Cards 7 & 8

Logo Option 7

Washoe County Health District
DISTRICT HEALTH

DEPARTMENT

Logo Option 8

Kevin Dick
Interim District Health Officer

1001 East Ninth Street
Reno, NV 89512

Office: 775-328-2416

Main: 775-328-2400

kdick@washoecounty.us

washoecounty.us/health

Phillip Ulibarri
Public Information Officer
Epidemiology & 
Public Health Preparedness

1001 East Ninth Street
Reno, NV 89512

Office: 775-328-2483

pulibarri@washoecounty.us

washoecounty.us/health

WASHOE      COUNTY

HEALTH
PREVENT. PROMOTE. PROTECT.

D  I  S  T  R  I  C  T

WASHOE      COUNTY

HEALTH
PREVENT. PROMOTE. PROTECT.

D  I  S  T  R  I  C  T

Kevin Dick
District Health Officer

1001 East Ninth Street
Reno, NV 89512

Office: 775-328-2416
Main: 775-328-2400

kdick@washoecounty.us
washoecounty.us/health

Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada.

OFFICE OF THE 
DISTRICT HEALTH 
OFFICER

Phillip Ulibarri
Public Information Officer

1001 East Ninth Street
Reno, NV 89512

Office: 775-328-2483

pulibarri@washoecounty.us
washoecounty.us/health

Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada.



Ads 7 & 8

Washoe County Health District
DISTRICT HEALTH

DEPARTMENT

Logo Option 7 Logo Option 8

WASHOE      COUNTY

HEALTH
PREVENT. PROMOTE. PROTECT.

D  I  S  T  R  I  C  T



AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION

1001 East Ninth Street    I    P.O. Box 11130    I    Reno, Nevada 89520

AQMD Office: 775-784-7200    I    Fax: 775-784-7255    I    washoecounty.us/health

Serving Reno, Sparks and all of Washoe County, Nevada. Washoe County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.



 WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: December 18, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer 
328-2417, aheenan@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund Financial Review for Fiscal Year 
2015 year to date November 30, 2014 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
SUMMARY  
The first five months of the fiscal year 2015 (FY15) ended with a cash balance of $131,763.  Total 
revenues were $5.9 million, 30.7% of budget and an increase of 4.1% compared to fiscal year 2014 
(FY14).  The increase was due to the transfer from the County General Fund being up 21.1%, with the 
general fund transfer excluded there was a decline of 6.3%, $221,920.  With 41.7% of the fiscal year 
completed the expenditures totaled $8.0 million, 38.3% of the budget and 5.5% more than FY14.  
Salaries and benefits continue to be the single largest category increase over FY14 at an increase of 
$407,838, 7.4%, for a total cost of $5.9 million.   

District Health Strategic Objective supported:  Secure and deploy resources for sustainable impact. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
Fiscal Year 2015 Budget was adopted May 19, 2014. 

BACKGROUND 

Review of Cash 
The available cash at the end of the 
five months of FY15 was $131,763 
which was 7.6% of the average 
budgeted monthly cash outflow of 
$1.7 million and down 73.0%, 
$355,649, compared to FY14.  
Since cash was available from 
other funding sources the County 
General Fund did not transfer 
funding in November, 2014 nor 
was funding transferred the same 
time last fiscal year; however, if 
funds are needed in December a 
transfer will take place. Note: December FY13 negative cash is due to 50%, $1.3million, of the County Overhead being 

charged in December with just 8.3%, $719,000, of the County Support being transferred to the 
fund.

 $(1,000,000)
 $(500,000)

 $-
 $500,000

 $1,000,000
 $1,500,000
 $2,000,000
 $2,500,000
 $3,000,000
 $3,500,000
 $4,000,000

Beg Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

Trend of Available Cash

FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 13.

mailto:aheenan@washoecounty.us


Date: DBOH meeting December 18, 2014 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2015, November Financial Review 
Page 2 of 4 
 
Review of Revenues (including transfers from General fund) and Expenditures by category 
 

  

 

 
 
 
 
Revenues for FY15 year to date 
November of $5.9 million were up 
$231,529, 4.1%, from the same time 
last fiscal year and were 30.7% of 
budget.  The following revenue 
categories were down: grants by 
7.3%, $133,483; tires & pollution 
control by 7.2%, $39,828; charges 
for services by 5.5%, $29,611; and 
miscellaneous revenue by 68.8%, 
$35,688.  General Fund support was 
up 21.1%, $454,075; and, licenses 
and permits were up 3.0%, $16,064 
over FY14. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Expenditures of $8.0 million for 
year to date November increased 
5.5%, $411,273, compared to the 
same time frame for last fiscal year 
2014.  Salaries and benefits 
expenditures for the five months of 
FY15 were $5.9 million, 7.4% 
increase, $407,838, over the prior 
year.  Salaries and benefits are 
74.4% of the total expenditures for 
the fiscal year.  Total services and 
supplies of $2.0 million were up 
$27,851, 1.4%, over fiscal year 
2014.  Capital spent year to date 
was a little under $8,000 at $7,961.   

 

 $-
 $500,000

 $1,000,000
 $1,500,000
 $2,000,000
 $2,500,000
 $3,000,000
 $3,500,000
 $4,000,000
 $4,500,000
 $5,000,000
 $5,500,000
 $6,000,000

Revenues
FY15 November Year to Date

 $-
 $2,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000
 $12,000,000
 $14,000,000
 $16,000,000
 $18,000,000
 $20,000,000

FY 12
Actual

FY 13
Actual

FY 14
Actual

FY 15
Budget

 FY15 Nov
Year to

Date

Revenues 
(including General Fund support)

GF Operating Support Grants
GF Overhead Subsidy Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits Tires & Pollution Control
Miscellaneous

 $-
 $500,000

 $1,000,000
 $1,500,000
 $2,000,000
 $2,500,000
 $3,000,000
 $3,500,000
 $4,000,000
 $4,500,000
 $5,000,000
 $5,500,000
 $6,000,000
 $6,500,000
 $7,000,000
 $7,500,000
 $8,000,000

Expenditures
FY15 November Year to Date

 $-
 $2,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000
 $12,000,000
 $14,000,000
 $16,000,000
 $18,000,000
 $20,000,000
 $22,000,000

FY 12
Actual

FY 13
Actual

FY 14
Actual

FY 15
Budget

 FY15 Nov
Year to

Date

Expenditures

Salaries & Wages Benefits
County Overhead Misc. Services & Supplies
Professional Services Chemical Supplies
Biologicals Capital



Date: DBOH meeting December 18, 2014 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2015, November Financial Review 
Page 3 of 4 
 
Review of Revenue and Expenditures by Division 
AQM division revenue has a 23.0% decline, $292,278, over FY14.  This decline is due to a one time 
excess funding from the DMV of $314,381 in FY14; excluding this funding source FY15 was up over 
FY14 by 2.3%, $22,103.  EHS is up 28.1% over FY14 with the majority of that increase due to the tire 
fee revenue; excluding the tire fee revenue the increase over FY14 is 2.9%, $14,732.  EPHP is down 
from FY14 by 17.5%, $109,949, mainly due to a decline in grant reimbursements for the Assistant 
Secretary for Preparedness and Response (ASPR) Hospital Preparedness Program and the Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention Public Health Preparedness grants; however, the decline was budgeted 
and the revenue is in-line with the anticipated reimbursement.  County General Fund transferred 
$2,605,048 of the budgeted transfer, $454,075 more than the same time last fiscal year.     
 
With 41.7% of the fiscal year completed the total expenditures of $8.0 million were slightly less at 
38.3% of total budget. ODHO, CCHS, EHS were running at a level spending pattern for the year.  AHS 
continues to be high due to the unbudgeted retirement payouts and AQM was low due to unspent capital 
funding.  The EPHP is down from what would be a level spending pattern due to the recruitment time 
that was required for new staff in the Vital Statistics and Emergency Medical Services program.  The 
County General Fund overhead charges for the five months totaled $1,142,109, 41.7% of budget, but 
down 5.4% from FY14 due to the overall decline in the overhead charge. 

 

2011/2012 2012/2013
Actual          

Year End
 November               

Year to Date 
 Adjusted 

Budget 
 November               

Year to Date 
 Percent of 

Budget 

 FY15 
Increase 

over FY14 
Revenues (all sources of funds)

ODHO -              -              -              -              -              -               - -
AHS 8                 33,453         87,930         32,903         61,113         41                0.1% -99.9%
AQM 1,966,492     2,068,697     2,491,036     1,269,346    2,116,070     977,068       46.2% -23.0%
CCHS 3,706,478     3,322,667     3,388,099     982,320       3,528,098     1,031,310     29.2% 5.0%
EHS 1,755,042     1,828,482     1,890,192     582,311       1,862,623     745,863       40.0% 28.1%
EPHP 1,670,338     1,833,643     1,805,986     629,309       1,566,507     519,360       33.2% -17.5%
GF Operating 7,250,850     6,623,891     6,853,891     1,713,473    7,666,420     1,997,101     26.0% 16.6%
GF Overhead Subsidy -              2,000,000     1,750,000     437,500       2,333,772     607,947       26.0% 39.0%
Total Revenues 16,349,208$ 17,710,834$ 18,267,134$ 5,647,161$  19,134,602$ 5,878,690$   30.7% 4.1%

Expenditures
ODHO -              -              -              -              437,477       181,246       41.4% -
AHS 1,202,330     1,305,407     1,247,924     491,238       1,004,343     459,834       45.8% -6.4%
AQM 1,955,798     2,297,077     2,170,911     808,415       2,752,520     846,331       30.7% 4.7%
CCHS 6,086,866     5,757,304     5,779,003     2,222,185    5,987,646     2,356,758     39.4% 6.1%
EHS 4,848,375     4,772,942     4,804,597     2,062,266    5,533,991     2,183,883     39.5% 5.9%
EPHP 2,084,830     2,129,310     2,022,331     747,423       2,287,196     780,153       34.1% 4.4%
GF Overhead Charge -              2,553,372     2,898,034     1,207,514    2,741,061     1,142,109     41.7% -5.4%
Total Expenditures 16,178,200$ 18,815,411$ 18,922,800$ 7,539,040$  20,744,234$ 7,950,313$   38.3% 5.5%

Revenues (sources of funds) less Expenditures:
ODHO -              -              -              -              (437,477)      (181,246)      
AHS (1,202,322)   (1,271,953)   (1,159,994)   (458,335)      (943,230)      (459,792)      
AQM 10,694         (228,380)      320,125       460,931       (636,450)      130,737       
CCHS (2,380,389)   (2,434,637)   (2,390,904)   (1,239,865)   (2,459,548)   (1,325,448)   
EHS (3,093,333)   (2,944,460)   (2,914,405)   (1,479,955)   (3,671,368)   (1,438,020)   
EPHP (414,492)      (295,666)      (216,345)      (118,114)      (720,689)      (260,793)      
GF Operating 7,250,850     6,623,891     6,853,891     1,713,473    7,666,420     1,997,101     
GF Overhead Subsidy -              (553,372)      (1,148,034)   (770,014)      (407,289)      (534,162)      
Surplus (deficit) 171,008$     (1,104,577)$  (655,666)$    (1,891,879)$ (1,609,632)$  (2,071,623)$  

Fund Balance (FB) 3,916,042$   2,811,465$   2,155,799$   546,168$     
FB as a % of Expenditures 24.2% 14.9% 11.4% 2.6%
Note: ODHO=Office of the District Health Officer, AHS=Administrative Health Services, AQM=Air Quality Management,  CCHS=Community and Clinical Health 
Services, EHS=Environmental Health Services, EPHP=Epidemiology and Public Health Preparedness, GF=County General Fund

Fiscal Year 2014/2015

Washoe County Health District
Summary of Revenues (including County General Fund transfers) and Expenditures

Fiscal Year 2011/2012 through November Year to Date Fiscal Year 2014/2015 (FY15)
Fiscal Year 2013/2014Actual Fiscal Year



Date: DBOH meeting December 18, 2014 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2015, November Financial Review 
Page 4 of 4 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
No fiscal impact associated with the acknowledgement of this staff report. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund 
Financial Review for Fiscal Year 2015 year to date November 30, 2014. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Move to acknowledge receipt of the Health District Fund Financial Review for Fiscal Year 2015 year to 
date November 30, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment: 
Health District Fund summary report with line item detail 











WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: December 18, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer 

THROUGH:  Kevin Dick, Health District Officer 

SUBJECT:  Discussion, acknowledgement and possible direction to staff given status quo 
financial projections for the Health District Fund and the next steps in 
preparation of the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget Process  

SUMMARY 

Staff is looking for possible direction from the District Board of Health for the preparation going into 
the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 (FY16) budget process.   

District Health Strategic Objective supported:  Secure and deploy resources for sustainable impact. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 

No previous action associated with this staff report. 

BACKGROUND 

The purpose of this staff report is to provide a financial review of the existing operations with a 3 year 
outlook if we follow a status quo process and to layout the next steps for the fiscal year 2015-2016 
budget process. 

Economic Outlook 
The economy continues to show signs of improvements.  According to the Nevada Department of 
Employment, Training and Rehabilitation the metropolitan statistical area (MSA) for Reno/Sparks has 
seen an increase in jobs of 7,400, 3.7%, over last year.  According to the State the sales tax is up 5.0% 
over last year for Washoe County.  The Economic Forum for the State revenue projections reports a 
positive outlook for sales tax at 6.7% for FY16 and 8.9% for Fiscal Year 2016-2017 (FY17).  The 
County Assessor has estimated a 6% increase in assessed valuation which normally generates a 1% to 
2% increase in property tax revenue.  These revenue sources are what help to fund the transfer from 
the General Fund which is currently $10 million, 51% of the Health District Fund adopted budgeted 
resources for the fiscal year 2015.  Given this positive economic outlook for Washoe County we hope 
for a positive change in the transfer from the County General Fund; however, the final revenue 
projections and transfer from the County General Fund will not be known until March 2015. 

Fiscal Year 2015 
The budget for the current fiscal year (FY15) was built assuming a modest growth in revenue sources 
sufficient to cover a portion of normal increases in base costs due to the full year of employee wage 
increases, merits and other contractual increases.  The overall theme for FY15 was to remain relatively 
flat.

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 14.



Subject: Update and status report for FY 16 Budget process  
Date:  December 18, 2014 
Page 2 of 4 

The current estimate year end (ETCs) 
assumes a 4.9% increase in revenues and 
general fund support over FY14.  
Unfortunately, the revenue increases do not 
outpace unavoidable increases in 
expenditures (i.e. merit increases, retirement 
payouts, PERS, health benefits, contractual 
obligations, etc.).  As seen in figure 1, 
assuming the current revenue streams the 
expenditures continue to increase faster than 
the revenues causing the need to use fund 
balance.  

Figure 1 

 
 

 

Review of projected financials given status quo 
As shown in figure 2, the Health District Fund has enough fund balance to sustain one more fiscal 
year after FY15 but is anticipated to have a negative fund balance situation by Fiscal Year 2016/2017.  
Appendix A has the Health District Program details of the Health District Fund forecast. 
    Figure 2 

 

-20.0%
-10.0%
0.0%
10.0%
20.0%
30.0%

$15,000,000

$17,000,000

$19,000,000

$21,000,000

FB
 p

er
ce

nt
 o

f E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s

Health District Fund 
Trending for Revenues, Expenditures & Fund Balance (FB)  

Total Revenues Total Expenditures Fund Balance %

ETC Base
 FY 2010-

2011 
 FY 2011-

2012 
 FY 2012-

2013 
 FY 2013-

2014 
 FY 2014-

2015  
 FY 2015-

2016 
 FY 2016-

2017 
 FY 2017-

2018 
 FY 2018-

2019 
FUND SUMMARY:
SOURCES OF FUNDS:
Opening Fund Balance 3,194,988   3,745,034   3,916,042    2,811,464   2,155,799   640,374       22,730       (780,256)      (1,750,563)   
Revenue:
Licenses and Permits 1,042,434   984,267     1,179,756    1,406,086   1,294,420   1,294,420    1,294,420   1,294,420    1,294,420    
Federal & State Grants 5,868,159   5,861,928   5,630,117    5,438,048   5,372,804   5,136,494    5,136,494   5,136,494    5,136,494    
Federal & State Indirect Rev. 76,808       106,217     142,069      357,864     266,543     251,693       251,693     251,693       251,693       
Tire Fees 450,911     513,800     432,642      314,136     468,548     468,548       468,548     468,548       468,548       
Pollution Control (NRS445B.830) 306,945     313,965     314,903      634,731     318,667     318,667       318,667     318,667       318,667       
Dust Plan 141,680     141,672     123,364      147,678     142,403     142,403       142,403     142,403       142,403       
Birth & Death Certificates 359,725     439,910     476,829      457,596     480,000     480,000       480,000     480,000       480,000       
Other Charges for Services 786,760     684,167     714,058      734,285     747,161     753,509       753,509     753,509       753,509       
Miscellaneous 44,676       52,432       73,204        172,819     66,241       37,550        37,550       37,550         37,550        
Total Revenue 9,078,098   9,098,358   9,086,942    9,663,243   9,156,787   8,883,285    8,883,285   8,883,285    8,883,285    

General Fund (GF) transfer-
Operating 8,192,500   7,250,850   6,623,891    6,853,891   7,666,420   7,743,084    7,743,084   7,743,084    7,743,084    
GF transfer Overhead Subsidy -            -            2,000,000    1,750,000   2,333,772   2,333,772    2,333,772   2,333,772    2,333,772    
Total General Fund transfer 8,192,500   7,250,850   8,623,891    8,603,891   10,000,192 10,076,856  10,076,856 10,076,856  10,076,856  

Total Sources of Funds 20,465,586 20,094,242 21,626,875  21,078,599 21,312,778 19,600,515  18,982,871 18,179,885  17,209,578  

USES OF FUNDS:
Expenditures:
Salaries & Wages 10,120,151 9,525,698   9,458,939    9,169,680   10,080,519 10,103,937  10,235,289 10,368,347  10,503,136  
Intermittent Hourly Positions 382,755     335,390     344,928      421,427     332,811     294,811       294,811     294,811       294,811       
Group Insurance 1,406,215   1,334,706   1,336,381    1,307,483   1,481,783   1,484,149    1,484,149   1,484,149    1,484,149    
Retirement 2,116,730   2,205,442   2,189,491    2,310,772   2,514,673   2,581,597    2,635,587   2,669,849    2,704,557    
Other Employee Benefits 226,638     205,137     268,263      211,142     252,315     221,417       221,417     221,417       221,417       
Contract/Professional Srvs 614,224     557,610     713,360      809,059     607,036     335,999       335,999     335,999       335,999       
Chemical Supplies (Vector only 321,497     265,304     231,490      231,398     231,500     231,500       231,500     231,500       231,500       
Biologicals 130,575     180,620     226,789      247,975     222,346     221,946       221,946     221,946       221,946       
Fleet Management billings 164,958     176,543     136,051      161,263     189,232     189,232       189,232     189,232       189,232       
Outpatient 102,101     90,911       85,670        79,036       88,786       88,786        88,786       88,786         88,786        
Property & Liability billings 71,512       77,036       80,283        74,502       74,502       74,501        74,501       74,501         74,501        
Other Services and Supplies 977,827     907,873     977,769      854,241     1,457,146   941,792       941,792     941,792       941,792       
GF Overhead costs -            -            2,553,372    2,898,034   2,741,061   2,741,061    2,741,061   2,741,061    2,741,061    
Capital 85,369       315,930     212,624      146,788     398,694     67,057        67,057       67,057         67,057        
Total Expenditures 16,720,552 16,178,200 18,815,411  18,922,800 20,672,404 19,577,785  19,763,126 19,930,448  20,099,944  

Transfer to General Fund -            -            -             -            -            -              -            -              -              
Total Uses of Funds 16,720,552 16,178,200 18,815,411  18,922,800 20,672,404 19,577,785  19,763,126 19,930,448  20,099,944  

Ending Fund Balance 3,745,034 3,916,042 2,811,464  2,155,799 640,374    22,730       (780,256)   (1,750,563) (2,890,367) 
Fund Balance as a percent 
of Uses of Funds 22.4% 24.2% 14.9% 11.4% 3.1% 0.1% -3.9% -8.8% -14.4%

Actual Projected
Washoe County Health District Fund



Subject: Update and status report for FY 16 Budget process  
Date:  December 18, 2014 
Page 3 of 4 

The fees for the program services are currently under review and if approved will generate an 
anticipated $100,000 increase due to new fees.  However, even with holding the expenditures flat this 
increase in new fees will not eliminate the structural deficit.  All revenue sources will need to be 
evaluated for possible areas to increase and the expenditures should also be evaluated for areas to 
decrease so as to bring the Health Fund into structural alignment.     
 
Given the status quo projections the fund cannot sustain an increase in the expenditures without 
additional resources so it is recommended that the FY16 budget process maintain expenditures at a 
status quo level unless additional resources can be identified to pay for any increase.  Staff should also 
look for ways to reduce expenditures or shift existing resources to areas that require funding.  
Appendix B is provided as a summary of the current FY16 base budget, which will be analyzed and 
brought back to the Board in February for review. 
 
Fiscal challenges that is not included in the projections at this time: 

• Labor issues 
o Cost of living adjustments beyond FY15 
o Health Insurance increases 
o Retirement increases 

• Impact of Legislative session 
• County Impacts 

o Amount of General Fund transfers for operating expenditures 
o Amount of General Fund transfer to cover indirect costs (subsidy) 
o Countywide cost allocation (COWCAP) for County indirect costs  

Next Steps 
• December – January, 2015 

o Develop Capital Improvement requests to submit to the County 
o Work with the Health District Program staff to estimate the FY15 year-end and 

develop an initial funding level for FY16 
o January, 2015 is the County Manager’s budget message to the Department Heads 

• February, 2015 
o Budget Status report and direction from the DBOH for FY16 budget to include an 

updated Financial projection given FY16 budget requests 
o FY16 Budget due to the County 

• March, 2015 
o District Health Officer delivers FY16 budget to County and City Managers 
o DBOH update on the FY16 Budget meeting with the County and Cities Managers  

• April, 2015: 
o Health District budget presentations to the BCC 

• May, 2015: 
o May 12, BCC meeting, Manager’s recommendations for FY16 budget and 

approval of the Washoe County Capital Improvement Plan 
o May 18, 2015, Public Hearing and possible adoption of the FY16 Final Budget 

• June - July, 2015  
o June 1, Final Adopted Budget is delivered to the Department of Taxation 
o 30 days after close of session, Amended Budget for legislative changes.  This is 

driven by the County Managers Office and may or may not be required 
o July 1, 2015, start of Fiscal Year 2015-2016 



Subject: Update and status report for FY 16 Budget process  
Date:  December 18, 2014 
Page 4 of 4 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
No fiscal impact. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Board provide direction to staff given status quo financial projections for 
the Health District Fund and the next steps in preparation of the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget 
Process. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
 
Move to acknowledge the receipt of the status quo financial projections for the Health District Fund 
and direct staff to continue with the proposed next steps for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget 
Process.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
Appendix A - History, Current Estimates and Status Quo Projected Financials by Program 
Appendix B – Washoe County Health District FY16 Base Budget as of November, 2014 
 





































WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: December 18, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer 

THROUGH: Kevin Dick, Health District Officer 

SUBJECT:  Discussion, acknowledge and possible direction to staff on the recommended cost 
analysis and methodology for the Health District Administration to conduct a 
cost analysis of all Health District programs – Fundamental Review 
Recommendation #10 

SUMMARY 
Discussion and possible direction to staff regarding the attached cost analysis and methodology for the 
Administration program which was the pilot project for the Fundamental Review Recommendation 
#10, perform cost analysis of all programs.  Staff is looking for direction from the Board as to whether 
the analysis is on track given Board direction on June 26, 2014, so as to start the Phase 1 of the cost 
analysis. 

District Health Strategic Objective supported:  Secure and deploy resources for sustainable impact. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
On February 27, 2014, the Washoe County Public Health: A Fundamental Review report was 
presented to the District Board of Health.  This report outlined 24 recommendations for the Washoe 
County Health District. 

On March 27, 2014, the District Health Officer presented a staff report with a proposed prioritization 
for implementation of the 24 recommendations to the District Board of Health for its review and 
direction to staff.  The District Board of Health took action to adopt the report as presented. 

On June 26, 2014, the District Board of Health approved the proposed uniform cost methodology and 
schedule to review the 22 Health District Programs; and directed staff to initiate the cost analyses. 

BACKGROUND 
On June 26, 2014 the Board directed staff to 

• Utilize a uniform cost methodology, which will be the total cost of both direct and
indirect cost of running the program 

o The direct costs are those activities or services that benefit specific projects.
o The indirect costs are not directly attributable to one project but benefit more

than one project.
• Identify the list of activities associated with the program.
• Identify the staff associated with the program.
• Review historical trends, cyclical trends, and ongoing versus one-time occurrences.
• Utilize the Public Health Uniform National Data System (PHUND$) to analyze data.

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 15.



Subject: Update on the progress of the Pilot Cost Analysis 
Date:  December 18, 2014 
Page 2 of 3 

• Report back to the Board for feedback regarding the status of the project. 
November 5, 2014 the draft pilot project reviewing the Health District Administration was submitted 
to the Health Officer for evaluation and review.  The direction from the Board on June 26th was 
incorporated in the methodology used to complete the costs analysis.  The complete analysis is 
attached but to summarize the report the following recommendations have been pulled from the 
analysis.   
 
Recommendations from the Cost Analysis 
 
Health District Fund 
The Health District Fund is fiscally stable for the current fiscal year; however, there is a $541,000, 
2.8%, structural deficit that needs to be addressed.  Given the structural deficit there are a couple 
options; increase revenues and/or decrease expenditures.  It is recommended that both approaches be 
explored. Revenue opportunities are currently being analyzed and if approved should generate 
approximately $100,000 toward the reported structural deficit.  The expenditures per capita of $44.08 
for WCHD is running higher than the median, $38.32, and the mean, $43.98, benchmark reported by 
the Public Health Uniform National Data System (PHUND$) so in comparing the benchmarks there is 
room for reductions in expenditures so that will be studied in the different phases of the cost analysis 
project. 
 
The total FTEs for the Health District are 20.9%, 39.78 FTEs, below the median and 6.5%, 10.48 
FTEs, below the average reported by NACCHO therefore the total FTEs should not be decreased in 
an attempt to decrease overall expenditures but should be explored in the future cost analysis for the 
proper mix of classifications required per program.   
 
Administration 
Given that administration is running at 7.3% of total cost compared to a median benchmark of 12.9% 
there is no immediate need to adjust the overall expenditures in Administration.  However, there are 
areas within the FTE classifications that can be adjusted. 
 
The fiscal staff FTEs is level with the median reported, 3.0, but is 1.25 FTEs, 29%, below the average 
of other Local Health Departments fiscal staff.  In looking at workload activities for Administration 
the administrative/clerical category can be reduced by one FTE without jeopardizing the workload 
productivity.  It is recommended that through attrition an administrative/clerical position be 
reclassified to a fiscal position so that the fiscal staff can focus on revenue opportunities and cost 
analysis that will help to balance the structural deficit.  
 
Administration is slightly above the median for public information and technology positions; 
however, with the growth in demand for public information and advanced technology and to increase 
efficiencies in the workplace, adjustments to those FTEs are not recommended.   
 
Total services and supplies budget appear to be sufficient to meet the overall demands on the 
expenditures; however, the employee development funding is below the benchmarking for 
expenditures per employee for training so funding from other line items should be shifted to allow for 
staff to increase the knowledge and skills brought to the work environment.  
Note: WCHD=Washoe County Health District; NACCHO = National Association of County & City Health Officials; and 
FTEs = full-time equivalents 
 



Subject: Update on the progress of the Pilot Cost Analysis 
Date:  December 18, 2014 
Page 3 of 3 

 
These recommendations are not what we seek from the Board at this time but will be bringing them 
back, when required, with separate Board actions or through future budget processes.  This staff report 
is meant to get feedback from the Board as to whether we are on track with the methodology directed 
in June, 2014, or to make any adjustments to the methodology prior to starting Phase I of the cost 
analysis. 
 
Listed below are the programs within each phase.   
 
Phase I 

• Environmental Health 
Services 

• Epidemiology Surveillance 
• Food Protection 
• Sexual Health HIV 
• Sexual Health STD 
• Tuberculosis 
• Vector Borne Disease 

 

 Phase II 
• Air Quality Management 
• Chronic Disease Prevention 
• Family Planning 
• Immunizations 
• Maternal, Child and 

Adolescent Health 
• Public Health Preparedness 
• Solid Waste Management 
• Women, Infants and Children 

Phase III 
• Community & Clinical Health 

Services 
• Emergency Medical Services 
• Safe Drinking Water 
• Underground Storage Tanks 
• Vital Statistics 

 

 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
No fiscal impact. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the District Board of Health acknowledge the Pilot Program, Administration, 
cost analysis and method used so as to continue the process with the Phase I group. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board agree with the method used for the Pilot Program, a possible motion would be: 
Move to acknowledge the cost analysis of the Pilot Program for the Health District Administration 
and methodology used and direct staff to start the cost analysis of the Phase I group. 
 
attachment 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

 
Date: November 5, 2014 
 
To: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
 

From: Anna Heenan, Administrative Health Services Officer 
 

Subject: Cost Analysis Pilot project – Administration of the Health District 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The pilot project for goal ten of the Fundamental Review focuses on the cost analysis of the Washoe County 
Health District Administration. Due to the fact that Administration includes both the Office of the District 
Health Officer and the Administrative Health Services Division of the Washoe County Health District 
(WCHD), referred to as Administration, both programs have been reviewed. 
 
Health District 
The total adopted budgeted expenditures (May 2014) 

for the Health District for Fiscal Year 2015 
(FY15) is $19,443,252 with the revenues being 
budgeted at $18,901,863 resulting in a structural 
deficit of $541,389.  Although there is sufficient 
fund balance to cover the structural deficit for the 
fiscal year it is not fiscally prudent to continue to 
operate at that level; therefore, the pilot project 
and the future phases for the cost analysis project 
will address the requirements to help bring the 
structural deficit into alignment so that the 
expenditures do not exceed the revenue (figure 1).   
 

 
Figure 1 

 
 

Total full-time equivalents (FTEs) for the Health District in FY15 are 150.72 (details on p.14-appendix C), 10.48 
FTEs below the mean benchmark of 161.20 and 39.78 FTEs below the median benchmark of 190.50.  In 
looking at the FTEs per 100,000 population WCHD is at 34.17 FTEs which is well below the median of 
43.52 FTEs (Note that the benchmarks used are from the NACCHO Local Public Health Workforce Benchmarks reported in 2011 and 2013 so for comparisons 
to WCHD FY15 it should be approached as a guideline for comparisons)   
 
Administration 
The total FY15 adopted budget expenditures, including indirect costs, for Administration is $1,410,844, an 
increase of 7.9% over the actual spent in fiscal year 2013-2014 (FY14) mainly due to a shift of a position 
from the Clinical Services to the Administration so as to strengthen the Districts mission for; quality 
improvement, improved community health and engagement, and to strengthen the infrastructure within the 
Office of the District Health Officer.  The total expenditures for Administration is 7.3% of the total costs of 
all programs within the WCHD; this level is below the benchmark of 9.0% to 15.0% recommended by the 
Public Health Uniform National Data System (PHUND$).  
 
The major benefits of Administration is the completion of the tasks that include accounts payable, 
community relations, grants administration, payroll, public relations, purchasing, risk management, 

 $15,000,000

 $16,000,000

 $17,000,000

 $18,000,000

 $19,000,000

 $20,000,000

FY 11 FY 12 FY 13 FY 14 FY 15
Budget

Washoe County Health District
Revenues and Expenditures

Fiscal Year 2011 Actual - Fiscal Year 2015 Budget

Revenues Expenditures

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 



Date: November 4, 2014 
Subject: WCHD Administration Cost Analysis 
Page 2 of 15 
 
technology management, and quality improvement; which are required so that the other programs in the 
WCHD can focus on the delivery of services to the community.  Another benefit is the ability to perform the 
Administrative tasks within the recommended levels presented by the National Association of County & 
City Health Officials and noted in the background.  
 
The overall staffing for administration falls in line with benchmarking.  Looking into the workload activities 
and the classifications within administration a shift from the administrative/clerical staff to the fiscal staff 
would allow for a greater focus on revenue generation and continual cost benefits analysis.  A shift in 
funding to increase employee development should be done to bring the training budget into alignment with 
best practices. 
  
BACKGROUND 
 
The Health District Fund accounts for general fund support, intergovernmental grants and user fees 
dedicated to public health services.  The Washoe County Health District reports to a District Board of 
Health composed of representatives appointed by the governing bodies of the Cities of Reno and Sparks, 
and Washoe County.   
 
Statutory Authority for Administration to Provide Services  
The following chapters of the Nevada Revised Statute (NRS) and Washoe County Code give 
Administration the authority to provide the services being performed by staff: 
 

NRS 439 Administration of Public Health 
 NRS 332 Purchasing: Local Governments 
 NRS 354 Local Financial Administration 
 

Washoe County Code:  
Chapter 5–Administration and Personnel 
Chapter 15 – County Finances; Purchasing 

Administration of the Washoe County Health District (WCHD) falls within two areas of the organization 
structure: the Office of the District Health Officer, established July 1, 2014, and the Administrative Health 
Services Division.   
 
Office of the District Health Officer (ODHO) 
The Office of the District Health Officer provides direction and leadership for the WCHD; manages public 
relations and outreach functions; guides quality improvement and strategic direction; and conducts DBOH 
administrative functions as outlined in figure 2. 
 
Figure 2 
 

Functions of the Office of the District Health Officer 
 
 Oversee the administration of Health District 

Programs 
 Recommend Strategic Direction 
 Organize activities of the District Board of 

Health 
 District Health liaison for Community Health 

awareness 

 Functions as the Office of Legislative Affairs 
 Ensure the continuity of operations in time of 

emergencies 
 Administer the public information program 
 Guide the District Quality Improvement 

direction and improvement initiatives 
 Guides the development of performance metrics 

 
 



Date: November 4, 2014 
Subject: WCHD Administration Cost Analysis 
Page 3 of 15 
 
The ODHO includes 4 FTEs; the Health Officer, Public Health Communications Program Manager, Quality 
Improvement Officer/Programs and Projects Director, and Administrative Secretary.  The main goal of the 
staff for the ODHO is to help strengthen the organizational effectiveness of the WCHD. 
  
The FY15 adopted budget for this program is $437,477 (figure 3); which includes the 4 FTEs and the services 
and supplies to support the program.  Of the $21,145 services and supplies budget for FY15 47%, $10,000, 
is being used to continue funding the commitment of $20,000 for the Community Needs Assessment that 
was started in Fiscal Year 2014. 
 
Figure 3 

  
 
Administrative Health Services Division (AHS) 
The AHS division ensures administrative compliance with fiscal and operational policies of the DBOH and 
Board of County Commissioners, and is responsible for planning, personnel management, policies, and 
other administrative duties as outlined in figure 4. 
 
Figure 4 
 

Functions of the Administrative Health Services Division 
 
 Ensure the proper implementation of payroll 

and human resources policies and procedures  
 Coordinate the financial reporting for the 

Health District 
 Ensure the proper implementation of internal 

controls for cash handling, grants 
administration and contract administration 

 Liaison to County for managing of fleet, risk 
management, facilities maintenance and 
Health District inventory of assets 

 Ensure proper functioning and operations  
of the Health District Technology 

 Administer the HIPAA Privacy and Security 
issues for the Health District

 
 
AHS has 10 FTEs; 1 Account Clerk, 1 Administrative Health Services Officer, 1 Administrative Assistant I, 2 
Department Systems Specialist, 2 Fiscal Compliance Officers, 2 Office Assistant IIs, and 1 Office Support Specialist.
  
The total FY15 adopted budget for the Administrative Health Services program is $973,367 (figure 5) for direct 
and indirect costs; which includes the 10 FTEs and the services and supplies to support the program.  Total 
services and supplies budgeted are $31,607 with the largest line items being seminars and travel at $9,800, 
31% of the total services and supplies, to support the staff on employee development.  The second single 
largest cost, $5,772, in services and supplies is the property and liability charges at 18% of the total services 
and supplies.  Property and liability is the Administration share of the total cost to run the Risk Management 
liability program in the County. 

 

Budget
Cost Elements 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

Expenditures:
Salaries and Wages 307,764          
Employee Benefits 108,568          
Services and Supplies 21,145            
Capital -                 
ODHO Expenditures -$               -$               -$               -$               437,477$        

Note: Line item detail is located in Appendix A page 11

Office of the District Health Officer                                                
was created July 1, 2014, prior to July                                                       

expenditures were reported in the                          
Administrative Health Services program 

Washoe County Health District - Office of the District Health Officer Summary
Fiscal Year Actual



Date: November 4, 2014 
Subject: WCHD Administration Cost Analysis 
Page 4 of 15 
 
Figure 5 

 
 
Administration 
Given that both the ODHO and AHS are administrative in nature the costs have been consolidated so as to 
compare to benchmark statistics.  The total consolidated FY15 expenditures for the two programs are 
$1,410,844 (figure 6), with less than 3.8%, $52,752, being in services and supplies and zero direct revenue due 
to the nature of the program being Administration.  
 
Figure 6 

 
 
 
The Health District Fund received direction from the DBOH on December 20, 2012 to apply indirect cost 
rates to all programs where appropriate.  The indirect federal and state reimbursement on grants and the 
additional revenue generated from the fees for services due to this policy is projected to be $407,000.  The 
benefits of the indirect cost rate revenue returned to the Health District Fund far exceed the $4,400 spent on 
the consultant to perform the study.  Given that the indirection is to update the cost rate annually, the 
consulting costs should continue to be part of the cost structure so as to generate the return on investment 
that is currently in the financial structure. 
 
 

Budget
Cost Elements 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

Total Revenue and other sources -$                 8$                    1,842$             653$                -$                 

Expenditures:
Salaries and Wages 882,962           816,336           818,247           784,544           600,934           
Employee Benefits 313,467           303,759           349,972           303,613           262,929           
Services and Supplies 46,206             82,235             110,701           130,500           31,607             
Capital -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Total Direct Expenditures 1,242,634$      1,202,330$      1,278,920$      1,218,657$      895,470$         

Total Indirect Expenditures -$                 -$                 61,135$           88,816$           77,897$           

Total AHS Expenditures 1,242,634$      1,202,330$      1,340,055$      1,307,473$      973,367$         
Note: Line item detail is located in Appendix B page 12

Washoe County Health District - Administrative Health Services Division Summary
Fiscal Year Actual

Budget
Cost Elements 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

Revenue and Other Sources
  Charges for Services -              8                 5                 -              -               
  Miscellaneous -              -              1,837          -              -               
Total Available Resources -$            8$               1,842$        -$            -$             

Expenditures
  Salaries and Wages 882,962      816,336      818,247      784,544      908,698       
  Employee Benefits 313,467      303,759      349,972      303,613      371,497       
  Services and Supplies 46,206        82,235        110,701      130,500      52,752         
  Capital Outlay -              -              -              -              -               
  County overhead -              -              61,135        88,816        77,897         
Total expenditures 1,242,634$ 1,202,330$ 1,340,055$ 1,307,473$ 1,410,844$  
% increase over prior year -3.2% 11.5% -2.4% 7.9%

Washoe County Health District (WCHD) - Administration Summary
Fiscal Year Actual



Date: November 4, 2014 
Subject: WCHD Administration Cost Analysis 
Page 5 of 15 
 
In looking at the revenue per capita, the WCHD at $42.85 (figure 7) is above the median benchmark of $38.38 
but well below the average benchmark of $46.35.  However, the WCHD expenditures per capita of $44.08 
is above both the average and median for benchmarking.  Focusing in on Administration, the expenditures at 
7.3% of total Health District expenditures are well below the industry benchmark of 12.9%.   
 
Figure 7 

 
 
 
The total FY15 FTEs budgeted for the WCHD is 150.72 (Appendix C).  The FY15 population of the County is 
projected to be 441,115 (figure 7) which equates to the WCHD having 34.17 FTEs per 100,000 population to 
deliver the services that are required.  Based on the benchmark values from the National Association of 
County & City Health Officials - Public Health National Data System the median FTE per 100,000 
population was last reported in 2013 to be on average 62.30 (figure 11).  The median benchmark is 44.11,   
which is considerably higher than what WCHD is running (figure 8).   
 
The administrative/clerical staff for the WCHD is approximately 9.07 with the median benchmark reporting 
7.71 (figure 9); however, the average is 14.70 (figure 11) which is 62% higher than the level for WCHD.  The 
management/directors classification, as defined by PHUND$, of 1.36 FTE per 100,000 population (figure 10) is 
one area that exceeds the median benchmark of 0.93 FTEs per 100,000 and falls below the recommended 
ratio of 8 to 12 for staff to 1 management position with an average of 7.67 when looking at Director level 
and the District Health Officer positions.   
 
Taking into consideration all management/supervisors the ratio for WCHD is running at 7.13 for staff to 
management ratio.  However, while the 8 to 12 ratio is a benchmark many operations require a 5 to 1 ratio 
or a 20 to 1 ratio depending on the level of day to day involvement, coaching, direction required, and 
mentoring that is required by the management with the staff.  Given this, each program will need to be 
reviewed for the proper level of staff to management. 

Budget
Cost Elements 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

STATISTICS:
Population (Source: NV Dept of Taxation and State Demographer) 421,593      427,704      432,324      436,595      441,115       

Total Fund Sources of Revenue 17,270,598$ 16,349,208$ 17,710,834$ 18,266,482$ 18,901,863$   
Total Fund Expenditures (Exp.) 16,720,552$ 16,178,200$ 18,815,411$ 18,922,800$ 19,443,252$   

STATISTICS:
Population (Source: NV Dept of Taxation and State Demographer) 421,593      427,704      432,324      436,595      441,115       

TOTAL HEALTH DISTRICT TRENDS:
PHUND$ Benchmark-Revenue/Capita Median 49.68$        38.67$        38.38$        38.38$        38.38$         

WCHD Total Fund Revenue per Capita 40.97$        38.23$        40.97$        41.84$        42.85$         
PHUND$ Benchmark-Revenue/Capita Mean 44.61$        50.06$        46.35$        46.35$        46.35$         

PHUND$ Benchmark Exp./Capita Median 36.27$        38.72$        38.32$        38.32$        38.32$         
WCHD Total Fund Exp. per Capita 39.66$        37.83$        43.52$        43.34$        44.08$         

PHUND$ Benchmark Exp./Capita Mean 43.90$        51.41$        43.98$        43.98$        43.98$         
ADMINISTRATION TRENDS:

PHUND$ Benchmark Median Admin Exp. as a 
percent (%) of Total Expenditures 20.8% 20.1% 12.9% 12.9% 12.9%

WCHD Admin Exp. % of total costs (incl. indirect) 7.4% 7.4% 7.1% 6.9% 7.3%
Sources: PHUND$ Benchmark values are from The National Connection for Local Public Health - Public Health Uniform National Data System (PHUND$)
              NACCHO Median - National Association of County & City Health Officials - National Profile of Local Health Departments (2010-reported in FY11-12, 2013 reported in FY13-15)
              Both Mean and Medians are used - mean is the average and the median is the mid point which is less affected by outliers and skewed data

Washoe County Health District (WCHD) and Administration Summary of Trends
Fiscal Year Actual



Date: November 4, 2014 
Subject: WCHD Administration Cost Analysis 
Page 6 of 15 
 

   Figure 8 

 
  

  Figure 9                                                                                                                              Figure 10  

 
 

 
Focusing on just Administration, the number of staff supervised by the District Health Officer is 8 and the 
Administrative Health Services Officer supervises 9 so the overall staff to management ratio is within the 
recommended benchmark.  The FTEs in Administration that are above the median benchmarking are in the 
Technology and Public Information area.  Reported in figure 11 is the median benchmark for Technology 
and Public Information that runs 1.50 FTEs and 0.50 FTEs, respectively.  The WCHD actual FTEs for 
Technology and Public Information are 2.00 for Technology and 1.0 for Public Information, both just 
slightly above the median.   
 
In the report by the Public Health Accreditation Board -Standards and Measures it is reported that the need 
for public health accreditation include domains which are groups of standards that pertain to a broad group 
of public health services.  If WCHD continues to explore the accreditation process the Domain 3 will need 
to be achieved.  This domain is to inform and educate the community about public health issues and 
functions.  This domain assesses the processes for continuing two-way communication with the public as 
standard operating procedure.  The public needs access to accurate timely information in the case of 
particular health risks like H1N1 and Ebola.  To facilitate communication, the Health District needs to have 
a relationship with community partners and the population and sub-groups of the population that it serves.   
 
Communication methods are changing rapidly through digital media such as Twitter and Facebook. In 
addition, the science of public health branding is developing rapidly.  Branding is important for the 

39.54 38.69 36.25 34.23 34.17

0.00
5.00

10.00
15.00
20.00
25.00
30.00
35.00
40.00
45.00

FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

Washoe County Health District 
FTEs per 100,000 Population

NACCHO Median Benchmark for FTEs per 100,000 Population - 44.11

9.63 9.26 8.93 8.74 9.07

0.00
1.00
2.00
3.00
4.00
5.00
6.00
7.00
8.00
9.00

10.00

FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

Washoe County Health District 
Administrative/Clerical FTEs per 100,000 Population

NACCHO Median Benchmark for Clerical FTEs per 100,000 Population - 7.71

1.42 1.40 1.39 1.37 1.36

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15

Washoe County Health District 
Management FTEs per 100,000 Population

NACCHO Median Benchmark for Management FTEs per 100,000 Population - 0.93



Date: November 4, 2014 
Subject: WCHD Administration Cost Analysis 
Page 7 of 15 
 
department’s image, reputation, and perceived value.  Given the critical nature of public relations between 
the Community and the WCHD and given the level of collaboration that is required from all agencies 
associated with Public Health it is critical to maintain one full-time position for public relations so as to 
guarantee the Health District strategic direction and continuity of the information being shared.   
 
The technological advances that are required not only for the public relations standpoint but for the billings 
and reporting stand point due to the new Regional Permitting System and the Insight Software requirements, 
the two FTEs, although above the median, are required for the existing workload that is currently being done 
by the staff. 
 
Figure 11 

 
 

Budget
Cost Elements 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

STATISTICS:
Population (Source: NV Dept of Taxation and State Demographer) 421,593      427,704      432,324      436,595      441,115       

WCHD Administrative/Clerical (A/C) FTEs 40.60          39.60          38.61          38.15          40.00           
WCHD Managers/Directors FTEs 6.00            6.00            6.00            6.00            6.00             

TRENDS IN FULL-TIME EQUIVALENTS (FTE):
TOTAL HEALTH DISTRICT TRENDS:

NACCHO Median Total FTEs given population 217.00        217.00        190.50        190.50        190.50         
WCHD Total FTEs 166.68        165.48        156.72        149.43        150.72         

PHUND$ Benchmark-Mean Total FTEs 159.43        159.43        161.20        161.20        161.20         

PHUND$ Benchmark-Median FTE per 100,000 47.84          47.84          44.11          44.11          44.11           
WCHD FTEs per 100,000 population (pop) 39.54          38.69          36.25          34.23          34.17           
PHUND$ Benchmark-Mean FTE per 100,000 53.90          53.90          62.30          62.30          62.30           

NACCHO Median A/C Staff FTE per 100,000 pop 8.06            7.95            7.86            7.79            7.71             
WCHD A/C FTEs  per 100,000 pop 9.63            9.26            8.93            8.74            9.07             

PHUND$ Benchmark-Mean A/C FTE per 100,000 17.30          17.30          14.70          14.70          14.70           

NACCHO Median Management FTE per 100,000 pop 1.42            1.42            0.93            0.93            0.93             
WCHD Management FTEs per 100,000 pop 1.42            1.40            1.39            1.37            1.36             

ADMINISTRATION TRENDS:
NACCHO Median Public Info. FTE given population 0.50            0.50            0.50            0.50            0.50             

WCHD Public Info. FTEs given pop 3.00            1.00            1.00            1.00            1.00             

NACCHO Median Technology FTE given pop 0.00            0.00            1.50            1.50            1.50             
WCHD Technology FTEs given pop 2.00            2.00            2.00            2.00            2.00             

PHUND$ Benchmark-Median Fiscal FTEs 3.00            3.00            3.00            3.00            3.00             
WCHD Fiscal FTEs 3.00            3.00            3.00            3.00            3.00             

PHUND$ Benchmark-Mean FTEs 4.63            4.40            4.25            4.25            4.25             
Sources: PHUND$ Benchmark values are from The National Connection for Local Public Health - Public Health Uniform National Data System (PHUND$)
              NACCHO Median information-National Association of County&City Health Officials-National Profile of Local Health Departments(2010-reported in FY11-12, 2013 used in FY13-15)
              Both Mean and Medians are used - mean is the average and the median is the mid point which is less affected by outliers and skewed data

Washoe County Health District (WCHD) and Administration Trends
Fiscal Year Actual



Date: November 4, 2014 
Subject: WCHD Administration Cost Analysis 
Page 8 of 15 
 
The fiscal administration is one area that is equal to 
the median benchmark reported of 3 FTEs but is 
below the average of 4.25 that is benchmarked for 
other Local Health Departments (figure 11).  The 
current 3 FTEs manage the fiscal operations of the 
entire WCHD.  Focusing on the current funding 
sources, the major sources of funds are from grants, 
FY15 budget of $5.4 million, and County General 
Fund support of $10.0 million (figure 12).  The other 
funding sources (figure 13) are below $1 million each 
with the Charges from Services approaching $1 
million at $850,000 for FY15.  The current 
workload of the existing fiscal staff is sufficient for 
the operations to continue status quo.  However, to 
reduce the support required from the County 
General Fund; to explore new grants; to explore 
additional charges for services opportunities; to 
continue to analyze and update the existing fee 
structure; and to continue to provide the level of 
financial oversight for the WCHD an additional 
staff position would be required in the fiscal 
program of Administration.  However, in the 

workload review that was done it was found that 
there is potential for a shift from the 
administrative/clerical positions to the fiscal staff so 
an increase in overall staffing is not required. 
 
 
 Figure 12

   
 

                                
                     Figure 13 

  
  

 
According to the Society of Human Resource Management the role of employee training and development 
is becoming more important as organizations are increasingly relying on the knowledge, skills and abilities 
of their human capital to drive performance.  Since training is a major component in enhancing employee 
competencies, monitoring the training cost per employee is critical.  The budget for training and 
development of Administration employees for FY15 is $13,300.  In the ODHO there are 4 employees with a 

 $-
 $1,000,000
 $2,000,000
 $3,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $5,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $7,000,000
 $8,000,000
 $9,000,000

Grants General Fund
Operating Support

General Fund
Overhead Subsidy

Washoe County Health District
Major Funding Sources

FY 13 Actual FY 14 Actual  FY15 Adopted Budget

 $-
 $100,000
 $200,000
 $300,000
 $400,000
 $500,000
 $600,000
 $700,000
 $800,000
 $900,000

 $1,000,000

Washoe County Health District
Non-Major Funding Sources

FY 13 Actual FY 14 Actual  FY15 Adopted Budget



Date: November 4, 2014 
Subject: WCHD Administration Cost Analysis 
Page 9 of 15 
 
budget of $3,500, $875 per employee.  In the Administrative Health Services Division there are 10 
employees with a training budget of $9,800, $980 per employee.  The budget for the Administration is 
below the lower end of the benchmark for expenditure per employee for training (figure 14).  Additional 
resources should be shifted to the employee development budget so as to increase productivity, increase 
customer and employee satisfaction, and to gain operational efficiency as determined by studies done by the 
Society for Human Resource Management.   
 
 
                                Figure 14 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Health District Fund 
The Health District Fund is fiscally stable for the current fiscal year; however, there is a $541,000, 2.8%, 
structural deficit that needs to be addressed.  Given the structural deficit there are a couple options; increase 
revenues and/or decrease expenditures.  It is recommended that both approaches be explored. Revenue 
opportunities are currently being analyzed and if approved should generate approximately $100,000 toward 
the reported structural deficit.  The expenditures per capita of $44.08 for WCHD is running higher than the 
median, $38.32, and the mean, $43.98, benchmark reported by the Public Health Uniform National Data 
System (PHUND$) so in comparing the benchmarks there is room for reductions in expenditures so that 
will be studied in the different phases of the cost analysis project. 
 
The total FTEs for the Health District are 20.9%, 39.78 FTEs, below the median and 6.5%, 10.48 FTEs, 
below the average reported by NACCHO therefore the total FTEs should not be decreased in an attempt to 
decrease overall expenditures but should be explored in the future cost analysis for the proper mix of 
classifications required per program.   
 
Administration 
Given that administration is running at 7.3% of total cost compared to a median benchmark of 12.9% there 
is no immediate need to adjust the overall expenditures in Administration.  However, there are areas within 
the FTE classifications that can be adjusted. 
 

$11,241 

$23,324 

$8,000 

$20,000 

$4,268 

$10,670 

$3,500 

$9,800 

 $-
 $5,000

 $10,000
 $15,000
 $20,000
 $25,000
 $30,000

Office of the District Heath
Officer

Administrative Health Services
Division

Washoe County Health District - Administration
Employee Development FY15 Budget 

compared to Benchmarks

2.7% of Staffing costs benchmark $2,000 per employee benchmark

$1,067 per employee benchmark FY 15 Budget



Date: November 4, 2014 
Subject: WCHD Administration Cost Analysis 
Page 10 of 15 
 
The fiscal staff FTEs is level with the median reported, 3.0, but is 1.25 FTEs, 29%, below the average of 
other Local Health Departments fiscal staff.  In looking at workload activities for Administration the 
administrative/clerical category can be reduced by one FTE without jeopardizing the workload productivity.  
It is recommended that through attrition an administrative/clerical position be reclassified to a fiscal position 
so that the fiscal staff can focus on revenue opportunities and cost analysis that will help to balance the 
structural deficit.  
 
Administration is slightly above the median for public information and technology positions; however, with 
the growth in demand for public information and advanced technology and to increase efficiencies in the 
workplace, adjustments to those FTEs are not recommended.   
 
Total services and supplies budget appear to be sufficient to meet the overall demands on the expenditures; 
however, the employee development funding is below the benchmarking for expenditures per employee for 
training so funding from other line items should be shifted to allow for staff to increase the knowledge and 
skills brought to the work environment.   
 
  



Date: November 4, 2014 
Subject: WCHD Administration Cost Analysis 
Page 11 of 15 
 
Appendix A-Line item detail for the Office of the District health Officer-established July 1, 2014:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Budget
Cost Elements 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

Expenditures:
701110  Base Salaries -              -              -              -              305,688      
701200  Incentive Longevity -              -              -              -              2,075          
Salaries and Wages -              -              -              -              307,764      

705110  Group Insurance -              -              -              -              31,764        
705210  Retirement -              -              -              -              72,786        
705230  Medicare April 1986 -              -              -              -              4,019          
Employee Benefits -              -              -              -              108,568      

710100  Professional Services -              -              -              -              10,000        
710105  Medical Services -              -              -              -              50               
710205  Repairs and Maintenance -              -              -              -              100             
710334  Copy Machine Expense -              -              -              -              1,000          
710350  Office Supplies -              -              -              -              1,000          
710355  Books and Subscriptions -              -              -              -              500             
710360  Postage -              -              -              -              300             
710361  Express and Courier -              -              -              -              50               
710500  Other Expense -              -              -              -              50               
710502  Printing -              -              -              -              625             
710508  Telephone Land Lines -              -              -              -              1,000          
710509  Seminars and Meetings -              -              -              -              1,000          
710512  Auto Expense -              -              -              -              300             
710519  Cellular Phone -              -              -              -              660             
710529  Dues -              -              -              -              1,360          
710872  Food Purchases -              -              -              -              150             
711210  Travel -              -              -              -              2,500          
711504  Equipment nonCapital -              -              -              -              500             
Services and Supplies -              -              -              -              21,145        

Office of D.H.O. Expenditures -              -              -              -              437,477      
(cost center 170202-Separated from 170200 Administration July 1, 2014)

Washoe County Health District - Office of the District Health Officer
Fiscal Year Actual



Date: November 4, 2014 
Subject: WCHD Administration Cost Analysis 
Page 12 of 15 
 
Appendix B-Line item detail for the Administrative Health Services Division: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Budget
Cost Elements 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

Revenue and other sources
460512  Duplication Service Fees -                   8                      5                      -                   -                   
Charges for Services -$                 8$                    5$                    -$                 -$                 

485100  Reimbursements 119                  -                   -                   
485300  Other Miscellaneous Governmental Revenue 1,717               -                   -                   
Miscellaneous -$                 -$                 1,837$             -$                 -$                 

485193  Surplus Supplies Sales -                   653                  -                   
Revenue and other sources -$                 8$                    1,842$             653$                -$                 

Expenditures (Exp.)
701110  Base Salaries 853,481           801,368           767,082           763,308           588,084           
701140  Holiday Work 484                  -                   43                    -                   -                   
701200  Incentive Longevity 12,460             11,340             11,063             11,354             9,850               
701300  Overtime 5,822               3,239               1,606               3,072               3,000               
701413  Vac Payoff/Sick Pay-Term 10,715             388                  22,414             2,035               -                   
701417  Comp Time -                   0                      16,039             2,890               -                   
701419  Comp Time - Transfer -                   1,886               -                   
Salaries and Wages 882,962$         816,336$         818,247$         784,544$         600,934$         

705110  Group Insurance 108,063           92,965             90,895             87,327             85,247             
705210  Retirement 184,951           192,029           184,812           198,809           161,632           
705230  Medicare April 1986 12,581             11,700             12,412             11,177             8,985               
705320  Workmens Compensation Insurance 4,879               5,715               5,083               5,124               5,889               
705330  Unemployment Compensation 2,992               1,350               1,235               1,176               1,176               
705510  Severance Pay 55,536             -                   -                   
Employee Benefits 313,467$         303,759$         349,972$         303,613$         262,929$         

.

710100  Professional Services 3,405               2,122               72,018             97,927             1,500               
710105  Medical Services 77                    -                   12                    117                  100                  
710110  Contracted/Temp Services -                   28,453             -                   2,897               -                   
710200  Service Contract 218                  -                   -                   -                   -                   
710205  Repairs and Maintenance -                   5,043               541                  280                  200                  
710300  Operating Supplies 657                  419                  174                  318                  175                  
710312  Special Dept Expense -                   -                   100                  -                   -                   
710334  Copy Machine Expense 1,782               2,783               3,592               3,696               3,000               
710350  Office Supplies 4,414               4,355               3,052               3,077               3,000               
710355  Books and Subscriptions 1,169               2,501               791                  3,346               2,100               
710360  Postage 1,098               819                  4,408               958                  700                  
710361  Express and Courier 15                    -                   35                    15                    50                    
710500  Other Expense -                   57                    50                    60                    -                   
710502  Printing 804                  912                  470                  824                  500                  
710503  Licenses & Permits 165                  1,626               895                  -                   -                   
710507  Network and Data Lines 444                  467                  460                  39                    480                  
710508  Telephone Land Lines 3,534               3,316               3,166               2,882               2,580               
710509  Seminars and Meetings 1,692               2,736               2,811               3,487               2,300               
710512  Auto Expense 91                    1,791               1,205               246                  500                  

Fiscal Year Actual
Washoe County Health District - Administrative Health Services Division (AHS)



Date: November 4, 2014 
Subject: WCHD Administration Cost Analysis 
Page 13 of 15 
 
 
Appendix B (continued): 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Budget
Cost Elements 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

710519  Cellular Phone 1,322               2,246               1,370               248                  -                   
710529  Dues 876                  3,204               5,352               849                  500                  
710546  Advertising 81                    -                   198                  -                   150                  
710551  Cash Discounts Lost -                   -                   4                      -                   -                   
710552  Moving Costs -                   1,046               -                   -                   -                   
710563  Recruitment 1,449               -                   -                   -                   -                   
711100  ESD Asset Management 360                  312                  -                   -                   -                   
711114  Equipment Services Operation and Main 696                  666                  -                   -                   -                   
711115  Equipment Services Motor Pool 38                    -                   -                   -                   -                   
711117  Equipment Services Fuel Charge 667                  706                  -                   -                   -                   
711119  Property & Liability Billings 6,460               7,005               6,383               5,772               5,772               
711210  Travel 6,287               7,602               3,210               3,335               7,500               
711300  Cash Over Short 1                      (28)                   -                   40                    -                   
711504  Equipment nonCapital 8,407               2,075               402                  88                    500                  
Services and Supplies 46,206$           82,235$           110,701$         130,500$         31,607$           

Total Direct Expenditures 1,242,634$      1,202,330$      1,278,920$      1,218,657$      895,470$         

Indirect Expenditures:
818000 County Indirect Costs -                   -                   61,135             88,816             77,897             
Total Indirect Expenditures -$                 -$                 61,135$           88,816$           77,897$           

Administration Revenue less Exp. (1,242,634)$     (1,202,322)$     (1,338,213)$     (1,306,820)$     (973,367)$        
(cost center 170200)

Washoe County Health District - AHS (continued)
Fiscal Year Actual



Date: November 4, 2014 
Subject: WCHD Administration Cost Analysis 
Page 14 of 15 
 
Appendix C – WCHD Full-time Equivalents (FTEs):  

 

Washoe County District Health History of Budgeted Full-time equivalents (FTEs)

Title C
at

eg
or

y

FY 11 
FTEs

FY 12 
FTEs

FY 13 
FTEs

FY 14 
FTEs

FY15 
FTEs

ACCOUNT CLERK ac 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
ACCOUNT CLERK II ac 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT I ac 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT II ac 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ADMINISTRATIVE HEALTH SERVICES OFFICER m 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY ac 2.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
ADVANCED PRACTITIONER OF NURSING n 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.21
AIR QUALITY SPECIALIST II aq 7.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00
AIR QUALITY SUPERVISOR aq 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
COMMUNITY HEALTH AIDE ot 7.45 7.45 7.45 6.60 6.00
COMMUNITY HEALTH NUTRITIONIST h 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
DEPARTMENT SYSTEMS SPECIALIST t 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
DISEASE INTERVENTION SPECIALIST n 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00
DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER m 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
DIV DIR AIR QUALITY MGMT m 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
DIV DIRECTOR-CCHS m 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
DIV DIRECTOR-ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES m 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES COORDINATOR epc 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.53
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES PROGRAM MGR epc 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00
ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEER II aq 3.00 3.00 3.00 2.00 2.00
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SPECIALIST e 21.40 21.40 21.80 20.75 20.75
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SPECIALIST SUPVR e 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
EPI CENTER DIRECTOR m 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
EPIDEMIOLOGIST n 2.00 2.40 2.20 2.05 2.05
FISCAL COMPLIANCE OFFICER ot 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SPECIALIST e 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
HEALTH EDUCATOR COORDINATOR he 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.00
HEALTH EDUCATOR II he 3.00 3.18 3.10 2.72 2.72
HUMAN SERVICES SUPPORT SPECIALIST II ac 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00
LICENSED ENGINEER e 2.00 2.00 1.30 0.00 1.00
LICENSED PRACTICAL NURSE n 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00
OFFICE ASSISTANT II ac 18.60 18.60 17.61 17.15 19.00
OFFICE ASSISTANT III ac 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
OFFICE SUPPORT SPECIALIST ac 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 5.00
PLANS/PERMITS/APPLICATIONS AIDE ac 4.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 3.00
PROGRAM COORDINATOR epi 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 1.00
PUBLIC HEALTH COMMUNICATIONS PROGRAM MGR pio 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00
PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY RESPONSE COORD epc 2.00 2.00 2.00 3.00 2.00
PUBLIC HEALTH INVESTIGATOR II epi 2.30 2.40 2.20 2.05 2.05
PUBLIC HEALTH NURSE II n 13.25 13.25 13.69 13.15 13.50
PUBLIC HEALTH NURSE SUPERVISOR n 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS MANAGER epc 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER pio 3.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00



Date: November 4, 2014 
Subject: WCHD Administration Cost Analysis 
Page 15 of 15 
 
Appendix C (continued):

 

Washoe County District Health History of Budgeted Full-time equivalents (FTEs)

Title C
at

eg
or

y

FY 11 
FTEs

FY 12 
FTEs

FY 13 
FTEs

FY 14 
FTEs

FY15 
FTEs

PUBLIC SERVICE INTERN e 3.39 3.51 2.76 2.26 2.01
REGISTERED NURSE I n 6.89 6.89 1.21 1.30 0.90
SR. AIR QUALITY SPECIALIST aq 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
SR. ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SPECIALIST e 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00
SR. EPIDEMIOLOGIST epi 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
SENIOR LICENSED ENGINEER e 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00
STATISTICIAN ac 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
STOREKEEPER ac 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
VECTOR BORNE DISEASE SPECIALIST e 3.00 3.00 3.00 2.00 2.00
VECTOR CONTROL COORDINATOR e 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
WIC PROGRAM MANAGER h 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
TOTAL HEALTH DISTRICT FTEs 166.68 165.48 156.72 149.43 150.72
Year over year increase (decrease) (20.59)       (1.20)         (8.76)         (7.29)         1.29          

CATEGORIES (see definition below):
ADMINISTRATIVE/CLERICAL POSITIONS ac 40.60 39.60 38.61 38.15 40.00

AIR QUALITY SPECIALISTS aq 15.00 16.00 16.00 15.00 15.00
EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS COORDINATOR epc 4.00 4.00 4.00 5.00 5.53

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SPECIALISTS e 41.79 41.91 39.86 36.01 35.76
EPIDEMIOLOGISTS epi 6.30 6.40 6.20 6.05 4.05

HEALTH EDUCATOR he 3.00 3.18 3.10 2.72 4.72
INFORMATION SYSTEM SPECIALISTS/TECHNOLOGY t 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
LOCAL HEALTH OFFICIALS/MANAGERS/DIRECTORS m 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00

OTHER (not grouped by NACCHO) ot 9.45 9.45 9.45 8.60 8.00
PUBLIC HEALTH NURSE n 32.54 32.94 27.50 25.90 25.66
PUBLIC INFORMATION pio 3.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

NUTRITIONIST/DIETITIANS h 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
TOTAL HEALTH DISTRICT FTEs 166.68 165.48 156.72 149.43 150.72
Source of definitions of categories - National Association of County & City Health Officials:

Public Health Nurses protect and promote the health of populations. While public health nurses may provide direct clinical services, such as immunizations and physical 
examinations, their focus is primarily on assessing the needs of individuals within the context of the community setting. 
Public Information (PI) Specialists communicate important health information to the public and serve as a liaison to community groups, agencies, elected officials, and 
the media. PI specialists commonly oversee internal communications, assist with marketing for health promotion programs and services offered by Health Departments.

Nutritionist/Dietitians seek to prevent illness and disease related to diet and exercise. They develop and supervise programs and educate and empower people to 
make healthy decisions. Nutritionist may als conduct studies and surveys to 

Environmental Health (EH) Specialists monitor and enforce safety and health standards and regulations related to the environment. EH specialists might be 
concerned with a variety of environmental health issues, such as waste removal, occupational safety and health, food safety, water quality and vector control.
Epidemiologists are experts in disease surveillance. They recognize and report outbreaks and illness in the community, track trends in health status and disease, and 
seek to discover the source or root causes of health problems in populations. They often design, develop, and implement public health programs and interventions.
Health Educators assess, plan, implement, and evaluate health education outreach programs and interventions that are designed to encourage healthy behaviors through 
policy, environmental, and lifestyles changes. They often collaborates with other health professional, worksites, schools, and othe organizations to prevent illness.
Information System (IS) Specialists/Informaticians apply information management science to improve population health and the organizational administration, 
evaluation, and public engagement processes. They identify the knowledge management, information, and data needs of their organization.

Administrative/Clerical Personnel provide support for office, business, or financial operations.  They assist with internal and external communication, record keeping, 
and other essential administrative duties.
Emergency Preparedness Coordinators develop emergency preparedness, response, and recovery plans for the community.  They also ensure that Local Health 
Departments emergency preparedness plans and guidelines coordinate with other organizations and government entities, such as fire and police; and local businesses.

Local Health Officials/Managers/Directors are the top executives at Local Health Departments. They plan, direct, and manage public health programs, such as 
immunization, environmental health, and health programs for women and children. They supervise staff, enforce public health laws and regulations.



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 

STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  December 18, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
775.328.2416, kdick@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Presentation, discussion, possible Board input and direction to staff to monitor 
and act upon 2015 Legislative Session identified topics of interest and Bill Draft 
Requests affecting the Health District and to submit a monthly staff legislative 
status report providing an update on legislative actions and Health District 
positions during the legislative session 

SUMMARY 
Staff has identified a list of topics recommended to be acted upon or monitored during the 2015 
Legislative session (Attached Exhibit A).  Additionally, incoming Bill Draft Requests (BDRs) have 
been monitored for potential impact (Attached Exhibit B) and staff is recommending they be acted 
upon as necessary if it is determined they are applicable to the Health District.   

Staff seeks input from the Board on the list of topics and whether the Board would like to include 
others areas of focus.  Staff recommends the Board, as a standing policy, direct staff to monitor and 
act upon 2015 Legislative Session identified topics of interest and Bill Draft Requests affecting the 
Health District and submit a monthly staff legislative status report providing an update on legislative 
actions and Health District positions during the legislative session.   

District Health Strategic Objective supported by this item:  Demonstrate the value and 
contribution of public health, secure and deploy resources for sustainable impact, strengthen WCHD 
as an innovative, high- performing organization and achieve targeted improvements in health 
outcomes and health equity. 

PREVIOUS ACTION 
Each biennium, WCHD has monitored Legislative activities and acted on them as directed by the 
District Board of Health.   

BACKGROUND 
Each biennium the Nevada State Legislature convenes to review, repeal or enact laws governing the 
State.  The Washoe County Health District (WCHD) monitors bills that may impact public health, and 
takes action in the form of bill tracking, providing testimony, and sometimes meeting with lawmakers 
to assist them in their decision-making process.  WCHD works with Washoe County to identify 
positions and attempts to resolve any contrary positions on bills. 

The activities noted above have the potential to require significant staff time.  This will be completely 
dependent on the number of bills that potentially affect the WCHD and the level of controversy 
surrounding each one.  The District Health Officer will register as a lobbyist in order to be able to fill 
that role on behalf of the Health District as necessary during the session. 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 
PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 16.



Subject: - 2015 Legislative Session 
Date – December 18, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

Bills advance and evolve, sometimes rapidly, during the legislative session and the District Health 
Officer will require significant discretion in working with staff and the legislature to provide input, 
information, and position on bills during the fluid environment which will be occurring between 
DBOH meetings at which new board direction may be provided. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
Should the Board approve staff’s recommendation, there will be no fiscal impact to the adopted FY15 
budget  

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Board provide their input on legislative priorities or concerns, direct staff to 
monitor and act upon 2015 Legislative Session identified topics of interest and Bill Draft Requests 
affecting the Health District and/or public health, and to submit a monthly staff report so that the 
Board may remain apprised of bill status, Health District positions, and provide additional input or 
direction through the course of the legislative session. 

POSSIBLE MOTION 
Should the Board agree with staff’s recommendation, a possible motion would be: “Direct staff to 
monitor and act upon 2015 Legislative Session identified topics of interest and Bill Draft Requests 
affecting the Health District, and submit a monthly staff legislative status report providing an update 
on legislative actions and Health District positions during the legislative session.” 



2015 Legislative Topics of Interest 

• (From 2013) Health Care Reform and Exchanges
• (From 2013) School breakfast program and generally nutrition in public schools
• (From 2013) Childcare worker training on health and development
• (From 2013) School based health centers
• (From 2013) Climate Change
• (From 2013) AB 571- Clean Indoor Act
• (From 2013) SB 421 - National Master Settlement Agreement
• (From 2013) Modernization of Vital Records
• (From 2013) Smog Check Program
• (From 2013) Health District and funding
• (From 2013) Funding for the Health District through Tobacco settlement

proceeds or additional tobacco tax
• Medical marijuana – all aspects - reactive
• Cottage food – proactive & reactive
• Classic Vehicle plates – lack of miles driven enforcement – proactive
• E-Cigarettes – proactive & reactive
• Smoke-free campuses – proactive
• Sexual education - proactive
• Genetically-modified food labeling - reactive
• Raw milk - reactive

ITEM 16 EXHIBIT A



BDR Description Sponsor or Requester

43-2
Revises provisions concerning the identification of seasonal 
residents and establishes provisions for the permitting of motor 
vehicles of seasonal residents.

Assemblyman Carrillo

54-3 Revises provisions relating to mental health. Senate Committee on Health and Human 
Services

14-4 Revises provisions relating to public safety. Senator Jones

5-9 Revises provisions concerning registration and community 
notification of juvenile sex offenders. Senate Committee on Judiciary

43-11 Makes various changes concerning motor vehicles. Senator Parks

43-13 Increases the maximum speed at which a person may drive or 
operate a vehicle. Senator Gustavson

43-14 Requires the Department of Motor Vehicles to establish a next-
of-kin registry. Senator Gustavson

43-17 Makes various changes to provisions governing public safety. Senator Spearman, Senator Manendo, 
Senator Woodhouse

18 Makes various changes concerning health care. Senator Spearman
23-19 Revises provisions governing ethics in government. Senator Smith

21 Makes changes governing cleanup of discharges from petroleum. Assemblyman Bobzien, Senator Smith

26 Clarifies provisions governing regulation of trapping of fur-
bearing mammals. Assemblyman Hansen

54-27 Requires suicide awareness and prevention training for licensed 
educational personnel and certain other professionals. Assemblyman Frierson

30 Revises provisions concerning sanitation. Assemblyman Carrillo
31 Revises provisions governing trapping of wildlife. Assemblyman Wheeler

R-33
AJR: Urges the Federal Government to support the management 
of certain birds to reduce the impact of predators on the greater 
sage grouse population in Nevada.

Assembly Committee on Natural Resources, 
Agriculture, and Mining

7-34
Exempts home-based businesses with an annual gross income of 
less than $60,000 from the requirement to obtain a state business 
license.

Assemblyman Hansen

38 Revises provisions governing course of instruction on sexual 
education. Assemblyman Bobzien

41 Makes various changes concerning the use of green building 
materials and products in residential construction. Senator Spearman

42-43 Provides for the establishment of Rangeland Fire Protection 
Associations. Assemblyman Hansen, Assemblyman Aizley

46 Revises provisions governing the collection of data for purposes 
of economic development. Assemblywoman Neal

58-52 Makes various changes concerning infrastructure for natural gas. Senator Atkinson, Assemblywoman 
Kirkpatrick

43-54 Revises provisions governing registration of motor vehicles. Assembly Committee on Transportation
50-56 Revises provisions governing animals. Senator Manendo
59 Revises provisions prohibiting certain discriminatory acts. Senator Parks

54-62 Revises provisions governing licensing and practice of certain 
medical professionals.

Legislative Committee on Health Care (NRS 
439B.200)

40-66 Provides for certain businesses to obtain and use auto-injectable 
epinephrine in certain circumstances.

Legislative Committee on Health Care (NRS 
439B.200)

ITEM 16 EXHIBIT B



54-67 Revises provisions relating to certain persons who provide 
services to persons with autism.

Legislative Committee on Health Care (NRS 
439B.200)

58-69 Revises provisions governing motor carriers. Assemblyman Ellison
43-72 Revises provisions governing traffic laws. Senator Manendo

79
Revises provisions relating to appointment and removal of 
members of boards, commissions and similar bodies by the 
Governor and the Legislature.

Senator Jones

50-80 Revises provisions relating to animal welfare. Senator Jones

84 Revises provisions relating to licensing of medical professionals. Senate Committee on Health and Human 
Services

40-85 Makes changes to Nevada's medical marijuana laws. Senate Committee on Judiciary

40-88 Allows a stand-alone bar to permit dogs to enter the 
establishment at the discretion of the establishment's owner. Senator Settelmeyer

45-89 Provides exemptions from registration requirements for the 
trapping of animals on private property. Senator Settelmeyer

43-92 Conforms registration requirements for OHVs to standards for 
cars. Senator Settelmeyer

94 Makes various changes concerning health care. Senator Woodhouse
95 Revises provisions relating to health care. Senator Woodhouse
97 Revises provisions relating to public safety. Senator Woodhouse
107 Revises provisions relating to pedestrian safety. Senator Jones, Assemblyman Healey
109 Revises provisions relating to squatters. Senator Jones
111 Makes various changes relating to energy efficiency. Senator Spearman
112 Revises provisions relating to health care. Senator Spearman
117 Provides for targeted HIV outreach and testing. Assemblyman Thompson

7-120 Exempts certain home-based businesses from the requirement to 
obtain a state business license. Senator Roberson

121 Makes various changes relating to fire and emergency medical 
services in Washoe County. Senator Kieckhefer, Assemblyman Bobzien

123 Makes various changes regarding transparency and ethics in 
government.

Assembly Committee on Legislative 
Operations and Elections

40-125
Enacts the "Nevada Right to Try Law" to allow terminally-ill 
patients access to certain therapies and medications that are 
currently considered experimental.

Assemblyman Ohrenschall, Senator 
Woodhouse

127 Revises provisions governing trapping of wildlife. Senate Committee on Natural Resources

128 Revises provisions governing the health and safety of children. Assemblyman Sprinkle

C-137 SJR: Repeals term limits for state and local offices. Senator Segerblom

139 Makes various changes relating to construction of school 
facilities. Senator Smith

140 Revises provisions relating to construction of school facilities. Senator Smith

141 Revises provisions relating to vital statistics. Senator Smith

144 Makes various changes relating to the regulation of e-cigarettes. Senate Committee on Finance

145 Makes various changes relating to taxation of e-cigarettes. Senate Committee on Finance

34-147 Enacts provisions regarding Nevada student data privacy and 
protection. Assemblyman Kirner



32-150 Makes various changes concerning governmental financial 
administration. Senator Spearman

57-153 Clarifies provisions of the Nevada Insurance Code. Attorney General
14-154 Makes various changes relating to Medicaid fraud. Attorney General
19-155 Revises provisions governing meetings of public bodies. Attorney General
19-157 Revises provisions governing public records. Attorney General

54-161 Revises provisions governing state professional licensing boards. Attorney General

164 Provides for implementation of the federal Innovation in Surface 
Transportation Act. Senate Committee on Transportation

167 Revises provisions governing community paramedicine 
programs. Assemblyman Oscarson

170 Revises provisions related to motorcycle safety. Senate Committee on Transportation

7-171 Repeals the requirement for a state business license fee and 
certain filing fees for businesses. Assemblyman Wheeler

17-172 Revises provisions governing legislative measures. Assemblyman Wheeler

32-175 Revises provisions governing the sale of electronic cigarettes 
and licensure of machinery used to manufacture cigarettes. Attorney General

176 Revises provisions relating to the Legislature. Senator Atkinson
179 Revises laws related to cottage-food industries. Senator Ford

187 Revises provisions governing salvage and recovery of unmanned 
aerial systems. Senator Hammond

38-192 Revises provisions relating to child welfare. Legislative Committee on Child Welfare and 
Juvenile Justice (NRS 218E.705)

38-193 Revises provisions relating to foster homes. Legislative Committee on Child Welfare and 
Juvenile Justice (NRS 218E.705)

38-194 Revises provisions relating to children in foster care. Legislative Committee on Child Welfare and 
Juvenile Justice (NRS 218E.705)

195 Revises provisions relating to child welfare. Legislative Committee on Child Welfare and 
Juvenile Justice (NRS 218E.705)

38-196 Revises provisions relating to child welfare. Legislative Committee on Child Welfare and 
Juvenile Justice (NRS 218E.705)

197 Revises provisions relating to motor vehicles, including taxicabs. Senator Manendo

38-209 Revises provisions governing family resource centers. Assemblyman Thompson

40-214 Creates Nevada's “Good Samaritan Drug Overdose Law.” Senator Kieckhefer

43-215 Revises provisions relating to organ donation. Senator Kieckhefer

52-228 Revises provisions relating to the operation of wineries in 
Nevada. Assemblyman Hickey

230
Creates a Public Safety Task Force to recommend effective 
legislation to address driving under the influence of drugs, 
including marijuana.

Assemblyman Hickey

54-231 Revises provisions governing the practice of medicine. Assemblyman Eisen

233 Revises provisions governing sex offenders and sexual offenses. Assemblywoman Fiore

38-234 Revises provisions governing the regulation of foster homes for 
children. Assemblywoman Fiore

235 Makes various changes to encourage physical activity in schools. Senator Hardy



40-239 Makes various changes relating to prescriptions for certain 
medications. Senator Hardy

249 Creates provisions related to exempt employees who are 
lactating. Assemblywoman Spiegel

48-253 Revises provisions relating to water resources. Assemblyman Ohrenschall

28-256 Makes various changes concerning government purchasing and 
bidding. Assemblywoman Kirkpatrick

54-260 Makes various changes relating to physician assistants. Senator Hardy
57-261 Revises provisions relating to insurance. Senator Smith
264 Revises provisions relating to health care. Senator Roberson
266 Revises provisions governing workforce development. Assemblywoman Bustamante Adams
268 Revises provisions governing motor carriers. Assemblywoman Bustamante Adams
270 Revises provisions governing transportation. Assemblywoman Diaz
277 Makes various changes relating to public safety. Assemblyman Sprinkle
280 Revises provisions relating to animals. Senator Kieckhefer

20-284 Grants power to local governments to perform certain acts or 
duties which are not prohibited or limited by statute. Senator Goicoechea

32-300 Revises provisions governing fuel taxes. Assemblyman Healey, Assemblyman Paul 
Anderson

11-301 Revises provisions governing birth certificates and parental 
identification. Assemblywoman Benitez-Thompson

32-307
Clarifies provisions governing taxation of tobacco products 
other than cigarettes to specifically include the consumable part 
of e-cigarettes and nicotine heated in a vapor device.

Taxation, Department of

308
Revises provisions relating to the Committee on Local 
Government Finance and assistance to financially distressed 
local governments.

Taxation, Department of

23-309 Revises provisions of the Nevada Ethics in Government Law. Ethics, Commission on

34-317

Revises provisions governing the annual audits of the count of 
pupils in public schools and provides authority for annual audits 
of recipients and sub-recipients of state and federal grants of 
money.

Education, Department of

32-322 Revises administrative provisions governing the collection of 
excise taxes on medical marijuana. Taxation, Department of

40-323 Revises provisions governing the Statewide Health Information 
Exchange System.

Health and Human Services, Department of-
Director's Office

57-326

Revises provisions governing duties of insurers, self-insured 
plans, pharmacy benefit managers, group health plans, other 
organizations that issue policies of health insurance and service 
benefit plans regarding payments made by Medicaid for health 
care.

Health Care Financing and Policy, Division 
of-Health and Human Services

38-327 Revises provisions governing payment for medical assistance 
and hospital care for indigent persons.

Health Care Financing and Policy, Division 
of-Health and Human Services

34-332 Provides requirements for administration of questionnaires and 
surveys in public schools.

Public and Behavioral Health, Division of-
Health and Human Services

40-333 Revises provisions governing issuance of medical marijuana 
registry identification cards.

Public and Behavioral Health, Division of-
Health and Human Services

38-337
Revises provisions governing the Statewide Central Registry for 
the Collection of Information Concerning the Abuse or Neglect 
of a Child.

Child and Family Services, Division of-
Health and Human Services



50-345 Revises provisions relating to the State Department of 
Agriculture and the regulation of agriculture. Agriculture, State Department of

49-346 Makes various changes relating to the regulation of agriculture. Agriculture, State Department of

58-347 Revises provisions governing pipeline and subsurface safety. Public Utilities Commission of Nevada

48-366
Makes various changes relating to the adjudication of vested 
water rights, appropriation of public waters, underground water 
and wells and planning and development of water resources.

Water Resources, Division of-Conservation 
and Natural Resources

48-367 Revises provisions governing groundwater management plans 
and critical management areas.

Water Resources, Division of-Conservation 
and Natural Resources

7-368

Provides exemption from state business license requirement for 
businesses assigned to provide vehicles or equipment as 
responders to wildland fires, floods, earthquakes and other 
emergencies.

Forestry, Division of-Conservation and 
Natural Resources

42-369 Reorganizes provisions relating to fire protection districts. Forestry, Division of-Conservation and 
Natural Resources

51-370 Clarifies provisions governing expenditure of money from the 
Fund for Cleaning Up Discharges of Petroleum.

Environmental Protection, Division of-
Conservation and Natural Resources

57-371 Revises provisions governing the regulation of insurance. Insurance, Division of-Business and Industry

35-375 Revises provisions governing the issuance of special obligation 
bonds to provide money for highway construction projects. Transportation, Department of

43-378 Revises provisions governing the safety requirements for driving 
on highways that cross railroad tracks. Motor Vehicles, Department of

40-380 Revises provisions governing licensing of stations authorized to 
perform emission inspections of motor vehicles. Motor Vehicles, Department of

32-381 Clarifies provisions governing reimbursement of interstate 
special fuel users for taxes paid on fuel used outside of Nevada. Motor Vehicles, Department of

32-382 Revises provisions governing taxes on special fuels. Motor Vehicles, Department of

36-391

Establishes the Nevada Intrastate Mutual Aid System to create a 
flexible and scalable method of implementing intrastate mutual 
aid among political subdivisions, special districts and federally 
recognized tribes within the State for all hazards.

Emergency Management, Division of-Public 
Safety

40-392 Provides for the regulation of the sale of dextromethorphan. Assembly Committee on Commerce and 
Labor

396 Revises provisions governing motor vehicle registration. Assemblywoman Neal
398 Revises provisions governing contractors. Assemblywoman Neal
399 Revises provisions governing managed care. Assemblywoman Neal

34-404 Revises provisions relating to plans for schools to use in 
responding to a crisis or emergency.

Legislative Committee on Education (NRS 
218E.605)

34-407
Revises provisions relating to information included in the annual 
report of accountability prepared by school districts and 
sponsors of charter schools.

Legislative Committee on Education (NRS 
218E.605)

412 Makes various changes concerning the regulation of the practice 
of medicine.

Assembly Committee on Commerce and 
Labor

43-413 Revises provisions relating to certain special license plates. Senator Brower
9-414 Revises provisions relating to renewable energy projects. Assemblyman Ohrenschall



22-422 Revises provisions governing local government agreements for 
the development of land. Henderson, City of

49-423 Authorizes industrial hemp farming in Nevada. Senate Committee on Judiciary

427 Makes various changes to reduce medical errors in hospitals. Senator Segerblom

429 Revises provisions relating to governmental administration. North Las Vegas, City of

R-431
_JR: Urges Congress to facilitate the release of the federal grant 
funds previously awarded to the Nevada Fire Safe Council for 
hazardous fuels treatment in the Lake Tahoe Basin.

Legislative Committee for the Review and 
Oversight of the Tahoe Regional Planning 
Agency and the Marlette Lake Water System 
(NRS 218E.555)

46-438
Revises provisions governing fracking to restrict fracking, 
require regulation of fracking solely by the Division of 
Environmental Protection, and make other changes.

Senator Segerblom

18-439 Enacts an “Environmental Policy Act” for Nevada. Senator Segerblom

57-440 Revises provisions relating to health insurance covering 
prescription drugs.

Senate Committee on Commerce, Labor and 
Energy

5-444 Revises provisions governing juvenile records. Assembly Committee on Judiciary
7-448 Revises provisions governing the State Business Portal. Secretary of State
7-450 Revises provisions governing state business licenses. Secretary of State

R-451

SJR: Urges Congress to enact legislation transferring title and 
ownership of certain public lands to the State of Nevada 
pursuant to the plan recommended by the Nevada Land 
Management Task Force.

Senator Goicoechea, Senator Gustavson, 
Assemblyman Ellison, Assemblyman 
Hansen, Assemblyman Oscarson, 
Assemblyman Wheeler, Assemblyman 
Hambrick, Assemblyman Duncan, 
Assemblyman Kirner, Assemblywoman 
Fiore

R-452
SJR: Urges Congress to require the sharing of federal receipts 
from commercial activity on certain public lands among the 
Federal Government, the State of Nevada and its counties.

Senator Goicoechea, Senator Gustavson, 
Assemblyman Ellison, Assemblyman Hansen

22-454 Revises provisions governing the authorized uses of the 
proceeds of the Residential Construction Tax. Nevada League of Cities and Municipalities

32-455

Revises provisions governing state licenses required for liquor 
importers, wholesale dealers of wines and liquors, wholesale 
dealers of beer, wine makers, instructional wine-making 
facilities, breweries, brew pubs and craft distilleries to require 
approval of governing body of city instead of county if principal 
place of business is located in a city.

Nevada League of Cities and Municipalities

31-456 Revises provisions governing timing of adoption of tentative 
budgets by local governments. Nevada League of Cities and Municipalities

19-464 Clarifies provisions governing the fees that may be charged for 
providing copies of public records. Nevada League of Cities and Municipalities

20-465 Grants authority for a Board of Commissioners to adopt 
ordinances regulating specific health and safety issues. Nevada Association of Counties

40-474 Revises provisions governing requirements for hospitals to 
provide emergency services and care. Clark County

40-475
Revises provisions relating to the public records of county 
hospitals and meetings of the governing bodies of county 
hospitals.

Clark County



476 Revises provisions governing funding of public hospitals. Clark County

481 Creates a statewide committee to study present and future 
supplies of water and allocation levels in Nevada.

Legislative Committee on Public Lands 
(NRS 218E.510)

46-482 Revises provisions governing pit lakes. Legislative Committee on Public Lands 
(NRS 218E.510)

42-484 Creates a nonprofit Rangeland Fire Protection Association in 
each county in Nevada.

Legislative Committee on Public Lands 
(NRS 218E.510)

486 Makes various changes relating to governmental administration. Lieutenant Governor

38-498 Revises provisions governing the regulation of county 
emergency shelters for children. Clark County

31-499 Revises provisions governing State Controller's debt collection 
system. State Controller

38-506 Revises provisions governing out-of-school recreation programs. Assemblywoman Diaz

507 Revises provisions relating to energy. Assembly Committee on Commerce and 
Labor

34-510 Revises provisions governing school buses. Assembly Committee on Education

512 Enacts the Caregiver Advise, Record, Enable (CARE) Act. Senate Committee on Health and Human 
Services

529 Revises provisions governing special license plates. Assemblyman Wheeler

537
Provides for an interim study regarding the development and 
implementation of energy efficient programs for various 
industries in this State.

Senator Spearman

540 Revises provisions governing public works. Assembly Committee on Government Affairs

38-545 Makes various changes relating to the Committee for the 
Statewide Alert System. Legislative Commission (NRS 218E.150)

19-547 Authorizes disciplinary action against employee who improperly 
disposes of official state record. Legislative Commission (NRS 218E.150)

548 Makes changes relating to oil and gas. Senate Committee on Natural Resources

549 Enacts provisions to protect natural resource and wildlife 
distribution data. Senate Committee on Natural Resources

550 Makes various changes relating to the Nevada Commission for 
Women. Legislative Commission (NRS 218E.150)

38-552 Makes various changes to certain advisory committees in the 
field of health care. Legislative Commission (NRS 218E.150)

26-554 Makes various changes relating to the Executive Council of the 
Land Use Planning Advisory Council. Legislative Commission (NRS 218E.150)

556
Makes an appropriation to Communities in Schools of Nevada, 
Inc. to coordinate the provision of student and family services to 
youth in this State.

Senate Committee on Finance

562 Revises provisions relating to information concerning pupils. Senator Woodhouse

43-571 Revises provisions governing motor vehicle licensing. Assemblyman Carrillo

43-572 Revises provisions governing vehicle licensing, registration and 
insurance. Assemblyman Carrillo

575 Makes various changes relating to the coordination of medical 
and dental benefits. Senator Hardy

576 Makes various changes relating to professional licensing boards. Senator Hardy



577 Makes various changes related to the provision of health care 
services and network adequacy.

Assembly Committee on Health and Human 
Services

579 Provides enhanced support services for veterans. Assemblyman Edwards
580 Ensures protection of public access to public lands. Assemblyman Edwards
581 Provides natural resources access and protection. Assemblyman Edwards
582 Enacts the public school innovation initiative. Assemblyman Edwards
589 Revises provisions relating to medical records. Senator Hardy

595 Revises provisions governing reductions in the workforce of 
school districts. Senator Brower

597 Revises provisions relating to firearms. Senator Settelmeyer
598 Revises provisions relating to public works projects. Senator Settelmeyer

604 Revises provisions relating to local governing bodies and 
officials. Senator Settelmeyer

54-606 Enacts the Nevada TeleHealth Access Equity Act. Assemblyman Oscarson

607 Revises provisions regarding infrastructure projects and rates of 
speed for the operation of a motor vehicle. Assemblyman Armstrong

609 Revises provisions governing the disposal of abandoned 
recreational vehicles. Senator Goicoechea

610
Makes various changes related to recruiting, retaining, 
stabilizing and expanding regional commercial air service in the 
State.

Senator Goicoechea

612 Makes various changes relating to wildlife. Senator Goicoechea
616 Creates a Sportsmen's Education Fund. Senator Hammond

622 Establishes safe harbor provisions for children who are victims 
of sexual exploitation. Assemblyman Araujo

623 Establishes provisions to address childhood obesity for children 
in child care facilities. Assemblyman Araujo

624 Revises provisions governing the Department of Motor Vehicles 
and registration under the Selective Service System. Assemblyman O'Neill

626 Revises provisions governing equipment for motor vehicles. Assemblyman Carrillo
631 Revises provisions governing alcoholic beverages. Senator Settelmeyer
632 Revises provisions relating to motor carriers. Senator Settelmeyer

633 Revises provisions relating to certain businesses. Senate Committee on Commerce, Labor and 
Energy

635 Revises provisions relating to occupational diseases. Senate Committee on Commerce, Labor and 
Energy

637 Makes various changes to provisions governing the termination 
of parental rights. Senator Hammond

642 Reduces regulations governing the transportation industry. Assembly Committee on Transportation

647 Provides for establishment of academic and research standards 
for designation of a public university as a Research University. Senator Ford

649
Establishes a program to provide first responders with critical 
medical information relating to victims of motor vehicle 
emergencies.

Assemblyman Armstrong

650 Provides for the merger of certain fire protection districts in 
certain counties. Assemblyman Kirner



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

DIVISION DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: December 18, 2014 

DATE: December 5, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Charlene Albee, Director 
775-784-7211, calbee@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Program Update – EPA Proposes New Ozone Ambient Air Quality Standards; 
Divisional Update – Monitoring & Planning and Permitting 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Program Update

a. EPA Proposes New Ozone Ambient Air Quality Standards

On November 26, 2014, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) announced the
long awaited proposal to strengthen the air quality standard for ozone to within a range of
65 to 70 parts per billion (ppb), while taking comments on a level as low as 60 ppb.  Based
on more than 1,000 new scientific reports, the Administrator determined there are serious
threats to public health at exposures below the current standard of 75 ppb, established in
2008.  The Clean Air Act requires EPA to review the National Ambient Air Quality
Standards every 5 years considering only the health effects as presented by a panel of
independent scientific experts.

Ground level ozone is not emitted directly into the air but is the result of chemical
reactions between oxides of nitrogen (NOx) and volatile organic compounds (VOC) in the
presence of sunlight.  The primary sources of NOx and VOC are motor vehicle exhaust,
industries, power plants, and vapors from certain fuels, chemical solvents, and paints.
Breathing ozone can trigger a variety of health problems especially for children, the
elderly, people of all ages who suffer from lung diseases like asthma, and has been linked
to premature death from respiratory and cardiovascular causes.  Ground level ozone can
also have harmful effects on sensitive vegetation and ecosystems resulting in stunted tree
growth and reduced crop yield. EPA estimates strengthening the standard to between 65
and 70 ppb will result in a reduction of 710 to 4,300 premature deaths; 1,400 to 4,300
asthma related emergency room visits; 65,000 to 180,000 missed work days; and 330,000
to 1 million missed school days.

The Clean Air Act does establish a schedule to allow states and local air agencies time to
meet the new standards.  EPA will seek public comment on the proposal for 90 days
following publication in the Federal Register.  After consideration of all of the comments,
the final standard will be issued by October 1, 2015.  Agencies must review the most
recent three (3) years of monitoring data to determine the area design value prior to

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 784-7200 FAX (775) 784-7225 
www.OurCleanAir.com 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.A.



December 5, 2014 
AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 2 
 
 

 
submitting recommendations by October 2016 regarding attainment designations.  Areas 
not meeting the new standard will be designated as non-attainment and will be required to 
submit a State Implementation Plan (SIP) with emission reduction programs to meet the 
standard between 2020 and 2037, depending on the severity of the non-attainment. 
 
The Air Quality Management Division’s most recent Trends Report, dated May 22, 2014, 
summarizes the current design values for all criteria pollutants.  The ozone design value 
for Washoe County is currently 68 ppb which is on the higher end of the range for the 
proposed standard.  If the final ozone standard is 70 ppb, Washoe County will remain in 
attainment of the standard.  If the final ozone standard is 67 ppb or below, Washoe County 
will be one of the EPA estimated 200 counties in the country that will be designated as 
non-attainment.  EPA’s analysis also estimates the combination of existing federal 
programs, including the Tier 3 vehicle and fuels standards and the Clean Power Plan, 
should help the majority of U.S. counties meet the new standards by 2025. 
 
What this all means is the new ozone standard will provide for a healthier environment for 
the citizens of Washoe County, however, in order to meet the standard, there is work to be 
done.  Even if the new standard is set at 70 ppb, emission reduction measures, both 
voluntary and mandatory, will be required to maintain attainment with the standard as our 
population and industry grow with future economic development.   
 
 

 
 
 
Charlene Albee, REM 
Director, Air Quality Management Division 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



December 5, 2014 
AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 3 
 
 
 
2. Divisional Update   
 

a. Below are two charts detailing the latest air quality information for the month of 
November.  The top chart indicates the highest AQI by pollutant and includes the highest 
AQI from the previous three years in the data table for comparison.  The bottom chart 
indicates the number of days by AQI category and includes the previous year to date for 
comparison. 
 

 
 

 
 
Please note AQI data are not fully verified and validated and should be considered 
preliminary.  As such, they should not be used to formulate or support regulation, 
guidance, or any other governmental or public decision.  For a daily depiction of the AQI 
data, please visit www.OurCleanAir.com for the most recent AQI Summary 

http://www.ourcleanair.com/


December 5, 2014 
AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 4 
 
 
 
3. Program Reports  
 

a. Monitoring & Planning 
 
There were no exceedances of any National Ambient Air Quality Standard during the 
month of November. 

 
The first Yellow burn code of the season was issued on Wednesday, November 26.  
Weather conditions improved and the code was updated to Green on Thursday, November 
27, 2014.  The first Yellow burn code last season (2013-14) was issued on November 24, 
2013; however, that episode continued for one week until December 2, 2013. 

 
Woodstoves, pellet stoves, and fireplaces are significant sources of wintertime fine 
particulate matter in the Tahoe Basin. The Tahoe Regional Planning Agency has funding 
available to Incline Village homeowners to replace older, higher polluting, less efficient 
woodstoves with newer, cleaner, more efficient wood and pellet stoves.  Instant rebates are 
now available to all areas of southern Washoe County as well as Carson City and Douglas 
Counties.  The University of Nevada, Reno | Business Environmental Program is 
administering these programs and additional information can be found at 
OurCleanAir.com.  

 
Because of an emergency paving project at the Nevada Department of Transportation yard 
in Reno, the Galletti monitoring station was temporarily removed on November 22.  
AQMD is coordinating with EPA to permanently discontinue monitoring at this location 
and establish a new site in the Spanish Springs area.  AQMD is also coordinating with 
Washoe County Regional Parks and Open Space for other potential new sites.  These 
proposed network changes are included in the monitoring program’s long term strategic 
plan.  Restructuring the monitoring network will improve overall coverage while 
continuing to meet federal requirements.  

 
 
 
Daniel K. Inouye 
Chief, Monitoring and Planning 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



December 5, 2014 
AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 5 
 
 
 
 

b. Permitting & Enforcement 
 

Type of Permit 
2014 2013 

November YTD November Annual 
Total 

Renewal of Existing Air 
Permits 88 923 90 1356 

New Authorities to Construct 9 119 2 71 

Dust Control Permits 7 
(106 acres) 

103 
(1080 acres) 

9 
(94 acres) 

119 
(1150 acres) 

Wood Stove Certificates 19 308 35 364 

WS Dealers Affidavit of Sale 10 
(5 replacements) 

105 
(67 replacements) 

9 
(5 replacements) 

99 
(61 replacements) 

WS Notice of Exemptions 537 
(3 stoves removed) 

6348 
(62 stoves 
removed) 

569 
(7 stoves removed) 

8356 
(88 stoves 
removed) 

Asbestos Assessments 54 737 46 828 

Asbestos Demo and Removal 
(NESHAP) 15 184 11 199 

 
Staff reviewed twenty five (25) sets of plans submitted to the Reno, Sparks or Washoe County 
Building Departments to assure the activities complied with Air Quality requirements. 

 
 
• The TMWRF H2S scrubbing system is installed and operating.  The system is running 

under engineering review.  TMWRF staff has completed training on the new scrubber 
system.  The SO2 modeling has been performed and demonstrates compliance with 
the National Ambient Air Quality Standards for the facility. 

 
• Permitting and enforcement staff has completed all of their required annual training.   

 
Staff conducted forty nine (49) stationary source and fifty three (53) gas station inspections in 
November 2014.  Staff also conducted inspections on asbestos removal and construction/dust 
projects. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



December 5, 2014 
AQM Division Director’s Report 
Page 6 
 
 
 

 

COMPLAINTS 
2014* 2013 

November YTD November Annual 
Total 

Asbestos 1 22 1 18 

Burning 1 5 0 8 

Construction Dust 17 49 2 0 

Dust Control Permit 3 20 0 7 

General Dust 1 50 2 46 

Diesel Idling 0 3 0 8 

Odor 1 15 2 16 

Spray Painting 1 6 0 5 

Permit to Operate 2 29 2 55 

Woodstove 0 10 1 16 

TOTAL 27 209 10 209 

NOV’s November YTD November Annual 
Total 

Warnings 3 36 4 46 
Citations 2 11 4 40 
TOTAL 5 47 8 86 

 
*Discrepancies in totals between monthly reports can occur due to data entry delays. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
COMMUNITY & CLINICAL HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

DIVISIONAL STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: December 18, 2014 

DATE: December 5, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Steve Kutz, RN, MPH 
775-328-6159; skutz@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Program Update – Divisional Update, Program Reports 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Divisional Update
a. Insight – The Insight Workgroup has been invited to participate on the Netsmart (vendor

for Insight) Public Health Advisory Council as we have been exemplary in the merger of
our clinical and technological expertise. This should provide us with more direct,
strategic solutions input into the Insight product, as well as a connection with a higher
level of Netsmart leadership. The workgroup will be meeting with the new Netsmart
account executive, Angela Moore, this month. Insight has been updated to version 8.0,
which will allow us to best utilize the features in new modules that are being
implemented.

b. Affordable Care Act (ACA) – CCHS programs will be conducting time studies this
month in preparation for FY 16 fee calculations. This information will be entered into
cost analysis spreadsheets, utilizing resource based relative value scale (RBRVS). It is
expected that this will improve cost recovery for our clinical programs. Conversations
and work on insurance contracts continue, most recently the Prominence Health Plan,
formally Saint Mary’s Healthfirst.

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2441 FAX (775) 328-3750 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.B.



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: November 20, 2014 
 

 
c. Data/Metrics –  

 

 
 
 

 
 
*It takes a full month after the last day of the reporting month for final caseload counts as WIC clinics operate to the end of 

the month and participants have 30 days after that to purchase their WIC foods. 
 
 
 

 
 

349 
121 151 

428 

20 

1069 

0

500

1000

1500

IZ TB STD FP MCAH Total

Number of Visits by Program 
November 2013 and November 2014 

 

November 2013 November 2014

472 365 403 1,185 

3,006 

5431 

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

Number of WIC Participants Served  
October 2014* 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: November 20, 2014 
 

Changes in data can be attributed to a number of factors – fluctuations in community 
demand, changes in staffing and changes in scope of work/grant deliverables, all which 
may affect the availability of services. 
 
 

2. Program Reports – Outcomes and Activities 
a. Sexual Health – Staff is developing process flow charts for chlamydia, gonorrhea, and 

syphilis investigations. These will assist with formative evaluation and ongoing quality 
improvement activities. 
 
Nicole (Nikki) Kleine will join the Sexual Health team as a Public Health Nurse I on 
December 15, 2014.  Nikki has a diverse nursing background with recent experience as a 
Clinical Instructor at Orvis School of Nursing. 
 
Staff provided STD and HIV testing at a prostitution sting at a local resort/casino that 
was conducted by the Regional Street Enforcement Team and the Gaming and Control 
Board.  Nine of the suspected prostitutes received testing. 
 
Television and social media ads will be starting in December to enhance outreach efforts. 
 

b. Immunizations – The Immunization Clinic is now scheduling appointments and 
providing clinic services five days per week.  Extended hours (until 7:00 p.m.) are now 
available on the first, third and fifth Wednesdays of each month. 

  
Seven School Located Vaccination Clinics were held at local elementary schools.  A total 
of 654 students and adults received 599 doses of flu vaccine and 143 doses of Tdap, in 
partnership with Immunize Nevada.  
 

c. Tuberculosis Prevention and Control Program – Victoria Nicolson-Hornblower will 
join the TB program on December 15, 2014 as a Public Health Nurse I, assigned to the 
TB and Immunization programs. Holly Mc Gee attended Case Management and Contact 
Investigation Intensive training through the Curry International Tuberculosis Center in 
November 2014. Staff is hosting the Northern Nevada TB Cohort Review on December 
16, 2014. There have been a total of six cases of TB disease in 2014.    
 

d. Family Planning/Teen Health Mall – Drs. Stephanie Wright and Brian Passalacqua are 
scheduled to begin Medical Director duties for the Family Planning/Teen Health Mall 
clinics in January. Orientation of new staff continues. Staff training for use of the Family 
Planning Module, which has been added to our Electronic Health Record, is scheduled to 
occur this month.   
 



Subject: CCHS Division Director’s Report 
Date: November 20, 2014 
 

e. Chronic Disease Prevention Program (CDPP) – Kelli Goatley-Seals presented Washoe 
County School District (WCSD) student Body Mass Index (BMI) data and information 
about electronic cigarettes to WCSD nurses on November 4, 2014. She also attended the 
Nevada Youth Advocacy Summit meeting on November 15, 2014. This was a statewide 
effort to build capacity among youth advocates in Nevada related to tobacco prevention 
and control efforts. Approximately 50 youth from across the state participated.  

 
In partnership with the City of Reno’s Crime-free Multi-Unit Housing program, staff 
presented information to ten housing owners/managers about the demand for and benefits 
of smoke-free multi-unit housing on November 12, 2014. Resources were provided to 
help properties adopt a smoke-free policy.   
 
Staff distributed tobacco cessation and prevention information at the Great American 
Smoke Out event at UNR on November 20, 2014. 
 
Staff attended a UNR student project Community Health and Wellness event sponsored 
by Reno Police Department at El Verbo de Dios Church on November 22, 2014. Quit 
Cards for tobacco cessation and other Washoe County Health District program 
information was distributed. 
 
Staff delivered activity kits to four childcare centers who implemented wellness policies 
improving nutrition and physical activity. The activity kits were purchased through the 
ACHIEVE grant, and a total of 12 childcare centers were awarded kits. CDPP staff are 
developing low cost and low effort ways to continue to recognize childcare centers who 
implement wellness policies, now that all of the activity kits have been distributed. 
 

f. Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health (MCAH) – Fetal Infant Mortality Review 
(FIMR) staff completed six data abstractions in November 2014. The second Case 
Review Team (CRT) meeting was held on November 12, 2014.  The national FIMR 
director attended the CRT meeting and provided guidance and feedback to the members.  
CRT meetings will be held on a monthly basis beginning in January 2015. 
 

g. Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children (WIC) – 
WIC staff conducted outreach (in conjunction with CDPP above) at the Community 
Health and Wellness Event on November 22, 2014, sponsored by the Reno Police 
Department and UNR Criminal Justice Department to address community issues, 
primarily domestic violence. USDA selected District Health WIC for a national nutrition 
education study that will highlight efforts across the nation that promotes healthy eating 
and physical activity behaviors. The WIC Program Manager participated on the Tahoe 
Forest Hospital Community Health Assessment committee for Incline Village and on a 
panel at UNR featuring Community Nutrition. 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES DIVISION 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2434 FAX (775) 328-6176 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DIVISION DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: December 18, 2014 

DATE: December 5, 2014  

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Robert O. Sack, Division Director, Environmental Health Services (EHS) 
775-328-2644; bsack@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: EHS Division Update, Program Updates - Food, Vector-Borne Disease, Waste 
Management and EHS Inspections / Permits / Plan Review. 

DIVISION UPDATE 

• After completing the annual routine inspection of the Lakemill Lodge and investigating eight citizen
complaints on the facility, EHS staff in early November requested assistance from the City of Reno
regarding compliance issues.  The result of this request was a joint agency inspection of the entire
Lakemill Lodge.  Eight field staff and one supervisor worked with various City of Reno agencies to
inspect the facility on December 3, 2014.  This inspection and the resulting report required in excess
of 45 hours of staff time.  (see attached)

• Chantelle Batton began employment December 1, as an Environmental Health Specialist Trainee I.

PROGRAM UPDATES 

Food 

• Staff in the Food Safety sub-program developed a new food protection training program
intended to prepare environmentalist trainees to conduct risk-based assessments at food
establishments.  The training program consists of a combination of US Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) on-line training courses, videos, reading material, a structured
field training schedule, field training manual and internal SOPs.  The training program is
designed to work toward completion of FDA’s Voluntary National Retail Food
Regulatory Program Standards which is a national continuous improvement project.

• The holidays are here and so is our message to the public, food safety.  Staff spoke with
press and reminded the public to be conscious of food-borne illness.  (see attached)

• Special Events - There were 110 Temporary Food inspections for Special Events in
November of 2014, an increase of 27 inspections over 2013.  Powers Craft Fair returned
for a second straight year to Reno to renew the long history of the event at Reno Sparks
Convention Center.  There were 18 permits issued for the event.  Comic Con was a new
event for November 2014 in which 6 temporary food permits were issued.   The event
was very crowded and busy and with numbers from the tourism authority pending was a
huge success.  Comic Con 2015 is already scheduled to return.

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.C.

mailto:bsack@washoecounty.us


EHS Division Director Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  December 18, 2014 
Page 2 of 4 

• Invasive Body Decoration Program (IBD) staff completed more than 50 inspections of 
IBD establishments in 2014.  Additionally, there were 5 events in which IBD operators 
were required to pull temporary permits.  In total there were 184 inspections conducted of 
temporary IBD operators at Special Events in 2014.  Events with IBD artists included 
Lady Luck Tattoo Convention, Silver State Tattoo Convention, Rockabilly Riot, Street 
Vibrations and Comic Con.  Washoe County staff worked diligently on keeping up with 
the technology and dynamics of IBD sanitation and regulation.  Staff will present revised 
regulations to the Board of Health in the coming months.  Washoe County is recognized 
as a leader in the State of Nevada with the work our staff has done in this area. 
 

Vector-Borne Disease  
 
• Kiley Ranch / Kiley Preserve:  The Spanish Springs area has been used for farming and 

ranching since the construction of the Orr ditch (circa 1873-1878).  The former Kiley 
Ranch northeast of Sparks Blvd and Pyramid Highway included in this area irrigated the 
ranch with tail water from the Orr ditch and runoff from flood irrigated fields captured in 
a series of manmade ponds and low areas were discharged into the Kiley wetlands, now 
referred to as the Kiley Preserve.  As an active ranch, staff recommended good irrigation 
practices to reduce the amount of runoff to the wetlands which Kiley Ranch ignored.  
With a Planned Unit Development proposed for the Kiley Ranch, the Vector-Borne 
Diseases Program reviewed the infrastructure to avoid ponding water.  During any review 
process; detention, retention basins, channel and swales are designed based on our 
regulations for storm and nuisance water to flow through these facilities rather than pond 
water.  Catchment areas for common areas and typical lots are designed to infiltrate water 
reducing runoff to catch basins, detention basins, and channels that eventually discharge 
to the Truckee River.  The uniqueness of this proposed Planned Unit Development is that 
the existing wetlands were utilized for irrigation runoff for farming.  Historically the 
wetlands/Preserve is a hot bed for West Nile virus.  With residential, commercial, schools 
and parks proposed for this Planned Unit Development the risk is high that people who 
live, work and enjoy the green belt Preserve is at risk for adult mosquitoes carrying 
diseases like West Nile virus.  Staff is in the process of working with the developers, 
Kiley Preserve Board, engineers, planners for the project.  The first step is to establish a 
funding mechanism for the Preserve.  Currently no funding exists.  The funding would 
allow the Kiley Preserve Board to develop improvement plans in collaboration with the 
Vector-Borne Diseases Program to enhance the Preserve including an annual 
maintenance schedule to reduce mosquito populations that transmit diseases while 
promoting bird diversity and water fowl for the Preserve. 



EHS Division Director Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  December 18, 2014 
Page 3 of 4 

The following figures show treatment costs by landowner for 2013.  Costs are combined 
totals for mosquito larvicide products and helicopter contract service fees estimated by 
property parcel coverage using real-time GPS mapping software.  The 2013 season 
represented a slightly drier than-average year, with moderate water levels drying out later 
in the season.  The 2014 season was atypical in that heavy rainstorms in the Spanish 
Springs area flooded the Kiley Ranch Preserve properties later in the season.  Data for 
2014 will be available in January 2015. 
 

 
 
 

 
*  Figures listed above do not include inspection surveys and disease surveillance costs 

(helicopter/pesticide applications only). 

Total Treatment Costs by Landowner for 
2013 

BELLA VISTA RANCH CO LLC
(45.82%)

NEVADA TRI PARTNERS
(21.71%)

RENO CITY OF (13.95%)

SOUTH MEADOWS
ASSOCIATION (11.71%)

KILEY RANCH PRESERVANCY
FOUND (6.81%)

$0.00

$10,000.00

$20,000.00

$30,000.00

$40,000.00

$50,000.00

$60,000.00

$70,000.00

BELLA VISTA
RANCH CO LLC

(45.82%)

NEVADA TRI
PARTNERS
(21.71%)

RENO CITY OF
(13.95%)

SOUTH
MEADOWS

ASSOCIATION
(11.71%)

KILEY RANCH
PRESERVANCY

FOUND (6.81%)

Total Treatment Costs by Landowner for 
2013 



EHS Division Director Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  December 18, 2014 
Page 4 of 4 

 
• The Vector-Borne Diseases Program lost a valuable individual to our program. 

Bud Varnum passed away unexpectedly on December 5.  Bud worked in our 
program for 5 years in the capacity of inspections for building projects.  Prior 
to signing off and the owner receiving their certificate of occupancy (C of O), 
Bud inspected projects ensuring our program design standards were completed 
for infrastructure.  More importantly, Bud provided a guiding hand to our 
public health interns.  His firm but gentle touch in providing advice, and 
sometimes corrections in their work ethic, made them better men and women.  
It is a difficult loss for all of us and our program.  

Waste Management Program 
 
• EHS staff received their first permit application as a result of the newly approved medical 

marijuana facilities.  Staff expects from 20 to 30 additional permit applications within the 
next year. 

 
EHS 2014 Inspections/Permits/Plan Review 

 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEP OCT NOV YTD AVG 
Child Care 6 3 7 13 10 27 25 14 25 16 7 153 14 
Complaints 70 74 68 96 101 97 139 117 128 78 52 1,020 93 
Food 499 312 452 388 475 364 288 420 429 458 510 4,595 418 
General 63 67 118 62 383 134 190 290 101 113 174 1,695 154 
Plan Review (Commercial) 14 3 4 3 14 14 4 3 10 31 20 116 11 
Plan Review (Residential Septic) 21 29 32 39 41 47 46 39 37 39 32 402 37 
Residential Septic Inspections 22 29 37 45 33 74 44 27 43 49 43 446 41 
Temporary Food/Special Events 28 33 62 84 132 420 337 765 271 183 110 2,425 220 
Well Permits 11 0 5 6 6 15 12 12 7 13 22 109 10 
Waste Management 12 20 29 9 12 21 13 13 13 4 9 155 14 

  TOTAL 746 570 814 745 1,207 1,209 1,098 1,700 1,064   984   979 11,116 1,011 
*  General Inspections Include:  Invasive Body Decorations; Mobile Homes/RVs; Public Accommodations; Pools; 

Spas; RV Dump Stations; and Sewage/Wastewater Pumping. 



City of Reno Conducts Inspection of Lake Mill Lodge 
Posted: Dec 03, 2014 1:33 PM PST Wednesday, December 3, 2014 4:33 PM EST 
Updated: Dec 03, 2014 5:09 PM PST Wednesday, December 3, 2014 8:09 PM EST 
By Andi Guevara 
producers@ktvn.com 

  

Lake Mill Lodge 

The task force arrived at nine in the morning Wednesday, ready to do a thorough inspection of the Lake Mill Lodge in downtown Reno.  
 
From health code violations and building safety, to business license compliance - no stone is left unturned. 
 
"When we do a task force, we actually hit every unit, we don't do a sample. We go into every unit, we inspect the exterior of the 
property, we inspect the books,” says Alex Woodley, Code Enforcement Manager, City of Reno. 
 
The Lake Mill Lodge is a motel, but some people live there permanently. About five years ago, the City of Reno temporarily shut the 
place down because it was considered uninhabitable.  
 
And while the management would not speak to us on camera or let us on the property, people who live there say it's improved since 
then.  
 
"There was drug dealers and there was riff raff here. It was dangerous, but it ain't like that,” says Steven Delong. 
 
Barbara Gallagher adds, "I've had no problems with cleanliness or anything. I've heard some people complain they've had bugs in the 
past, but I haven't." 
 
While there, police officers were able to identify 15 motel tenants with outstanding warrants. 
 
"So we're verifying that those people are still here and if they are we confirm the warrants. They get detained and they'll be taken up to 
the sheriff's office,” says Reno Police Officer Tim Broadway. 
 
After the inspection the owner will get a list of improvements that need to be made, and inspectors will keep coming back to ensure 
they're completed. 
 
"Anything that has to do with heating will be the number one priority, so those will be the first items that we'll address - give 'em like, two 
weeks. And then we come in two week increments at a time,” says Woodley. 
 
Officials say inspections like these are one of the ways the City of Reno is providing safe and liveable neighborhoods.  
The team inspected for — but was not limited to — heating issues, water requirements, minimal safety requirements (handrails, lighting 
in stairwells, etc.), infestations (roaches, bed bugs, etc.), fire egress (emergency exits), smoke detectors, nuisances, and/or any 
criminal behavior. 
 
The inspection is in compliance with one of Reno City Council's strategic priorities, which is to Provide Safe and Livable 
Neighborhoods, and the recent expansion of the Police Special Assessment District (SAD). 

The CSAST includes representatives of Reno Code Enforcement, Reno Fire Department, Washoe County Health Department, Reno 
Business License Compliance, and the Reno Police Department. The CSAST was created to address businesses or issues within the 
community that appeared to be in need of education and/or enforcement of adopted ordinances that provide for safety and quality of life 
standards as established by local, state, or federal laws. 

Of the 123 rooms that the CSAST team inspected, only 5 out of the 123 rooms passed inspection throughout.  The discrepancies found 
in the 118 rooms which did not pass a complete inspection had issues that varied from missing faucets; lose toilets, stopped up 
plumbing and smoke detector issues.  Some of the rooms also had no heat, cockroaches, bed bugs, and other unsanitary 
conditions.  The Washoe County Health District closed 2 rooms temporarily due to unhealthy conditions.  
  
During the inspection 5 individuals who all had active warrants for their arrest were contacted by Reno Police Officers and arrested.  
  
Upon completion of the Lake Mill Lodge compliance check, a small group of the CSAST performed a ‘spot' check at the Wonder Lodge 
located at 430 Lake Street.  (This is the same owner as the Lake Mill Lodge.)  The Wonder Lodge property has 63 rooms. Main issue 
identified was an inoperable elevator. Only 5 rooms inspected and they had minor issues.  
 
(The City of Reno, Reno Police contributed to this report.) 

mailto:producers@ktvn.com?body=http://www.ktvn.com/story/27540416/city-of-reno-conducts-inspection-of-lake-mill-lodge
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/6119025_G.jpg
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/6119025_G.jpg
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/6119025_G.jpg


Thanksgiving Food Safety 
Posted: Nov 25, 2014 7:18 AM PST Tuesday, November 25, 2014 10:18 AM EST 
Updated: Nov 28, 2014 10:16 AM PST Friday, November 28, 2014 1:16 PM EST 
By Landon Miller 
producers@ktvn.com 

 
  

 

You don't want to end your Thanksgiving Holiday sick. That's why we are asking the Washoe 
County Health Department the ways we can keep our food safe this year.  

 “It's very important to have advanced preparation because during this time of the year, we 
don't want families to get a food-borne illness,” said Kim Franchi, an environmental health 
specialist with Washoe County. “It can ruin a holiday really fast.”  

More than 23 million Americans are infected with food-borne illness each year. But there are 
ways to protect yourself.   
 
Because Thanksgiving is only two days away, now is the time to start with your preparation. 
It's time to thaw the bird.  
 
“Do not thaw frozen meats in room temperature on your countertop,” said Franchi. “Make 
sure you plan in advance and thaw those turkeys in refrigeration at 40 degrees or lower.”  
 
Franchi says there are four basic things to keep in mind come Thanksgiving Day. Once it's 
time to start the cooking process, yes, it may seem obvious, but wash your hands for at 
least 20 seconds.  
 
Make sure you are cooking in a clean environment, so disinfect the surfaces. Separate 
meats from produce. Finally, cook everything thoroughly.  Your turkey needs to be at least 
165 degrees inside.  
 
So now that we've cooked, and we've eaten, what should we do with the leftovers?  
 
“Your leftovers need to be cooled properly,” said Franchi. “Any leftovers need to be put in 
the refrigerator within two hours and kept cold at 40 degrees or colder.”  
 
Still confused or have a specific question? Then ask Karen. Yes. Karen. It's a website that 
allows users to ask questions directly to federal food safety experts.  

 

mailto:producers@ktvn.com?body=http://www.ktvn.com/story/27477670/thanksgiving-food-safety
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/5705214_G.jpg
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/5705214_G.jpg
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/5705214_G.jpg
http://www.foodsafety.gov/experts/askkaren/
http://www.foodsafety.gov/experts/askkaren/
http://ktvn.images.worldnow.com/images/5705214_G.jpg


WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
EPIDEMIOLOGY & PUBLIC HEALTH PREPAREDNESS 

DIVISON DIRECTOR STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: December 19, 2014 

DATE: December 8, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Randall Todd, DrPH, EPHP Director 
          775-328-2443, rtodd@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: Program Updates for Communicable Disease, Public Health Preparedness, 
and Emergency Medical Services 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Communicable Disease (CD) -  
Pertussis - CD staff have continued to investigate pertussis cases. To date, 56 cases have been 
reported and investigated in comparison to 22 cases for the whole year in 2013. Twenty-one (21) 
suspected cases reported to date by physicians did not meet the case definition.  

Ebola - CD staff members actively monitored one Ebola contact and two residents who returned 
from affected West Africa countries. All three individuals had low but not zero risk. Two had not 
developed any symptoms at the end of the 21 day period.  A third individual is still being 
monitored through December 13. 

Enterovirus D68 – CD staff investigated six suspected EVD68 like illness cases and so far two 
have come back positive for Rhinovirus, one was negative for enterovirus, and three are still 
pending. No lab-confirmed EVD-68 has been identified in Nevada to date.  

Influenza – As of week #48 (ending 11/29/14), the percentage of patients seen with ILI in 
Washoe County was 3.1% and the P&I ratio for week #47 was 6.7%. During week #47, the 
percentage of patients seen nationally with ILI was 2.0%. As of week #48, 23 lab-confirmed 
influenza cases have been reported. Of which, 10 were influenza A and 13 were influenza B. 
Two cases were hospitalized and there has been one influenza-related death. 

Public Health Preparedness (PHP) – 
Staff continued participation in the County’s Hazard Mitigation process by providing relevant 
Health District plans to the Plan coordinator. This process will result in an updated/revised 
hazard mitigation plan for Washoe County.  

PHP staff worked with the County safety representative to develop Emergency Action Plans 
(handouts) that are Health District specific. These Emergency Action Plans, to be distributed to 
all District employees, provide “at-a-glance” emergency phone numbers and actions to be taken 
during an emergency.   

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-6190 FAX (775) 325-8130 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.D.



 
 

Staff continued to staff ICS roles for Ebola Preparedness within the Health District's ICS 
structure. PHP staff wrote a large section of the Ebola Virus Disease Emergency Operations Plan 
and assisted in the coordination of the division input to the plan.   
 
An After Action Report - Improvement Plan for the Full Scale Pandemic Influenza Point of 
Dispensing Exercise was completed.  All objectives of the exercise were met, and improvements 
to future exercises will be addressed.  The most significant outcome was the ability of multi-
response agencies to come together as a unified team to augment Health District Public POD 
operations if necessary. 
 
PHP has coordinated six additional Fire Vaccination Trainings for January 2015 to ensure all 
intermediate and advanced firefighters from the three local fire agencies are trained to provide 
vaccinations in the event of a public health emergency such as pandemic influenza or smallpox. 
 
PHP staff will be conducting a Point of Dispensing Tabletop exercise on December 11th with the 
scenario focusing on weaponized pneumonic plague. 
 
The WCHD’s Medical Reserve Corps Volunteer Program (MRC) involved MRC Volunteers in a 
training/ educational session on the Ebola Virus Disease (EVD) on December 5th at the WCHD.  
The purpose of the training was to provide volunteers with an overview on Ebola.   Other 
volunteers representing different organizations e.g. CERT and the American Red Cross were also 
invited to the training.  Dr. Todd was the presenter.  
 
On November 19, 2014 the MRC Coordinator attended a meeting of the Volunteers Association 
of Northern Nevada (VANN).  In attendance at the meeting were over ten different volunteer 
managers representing a variety of private and public organizations and associations.  The topic 
of discussion was “The Essentials of Risk Management for your Volunteers and Volunteer 
Program.”  The MRC Coordinator also made a brief presentation and passed out Flyers inviting 
attendees to the upcoming volunteer training/educational session on Ebola.   
 
Emergency Medical Services (EMS) –  
EMS staff met with REMSA to learn more about the Nurse Health Line (NHL) as it is a 
continued topic of discussion with EMS partner organizations.  During the meeting, EMS staff 
learned about the interface between NHL, PSAPs and RESMA Dispatch.  An in-depth discussion 
was held regarding the data collected at part of the NHL federal grant and the applicability of 
that data to EMS performance.  The information obtained assists with understanding the EMS 
system from all aspects and not simply from the initiated citizen 911 calls.   
 
EMS staff has obtained the necessary data points from all signatories of the Interlocal Agreement 
for EMS Oversight.  Based on the commitment from regional agencies, data will now be 
submitted on a monthly basis so that regular analyses of the EMS system in Washoe County can 
occur. The EMS Oversight Program intends to complete both monthly and quarterly analyses for 
each jurisdiction and will present the findings to the EMS Advisory Board at each meeting.  
 
EMS staff are currently watching the following bill drafts: 
40-474: Sponsored by Clark County.  Revises provisions governing requirements for hospitals to 
provide emergency services and care. Submitted 8/29/2014 



577: Sponsored by Assembly Committee on Health and Human Services.  Makes various 
changes related to the provision of health care services and network adequacy.  Submitted 
11/17/2014 
589: Sponsored by Senator Hardy.  Revises provisions relating to medical records.  Submitted 
11/20/2014 

Four Health District staff members attended the Integrated Emergency Management Course at 
the Emergency Management Institute on November 17-20, to include the EMS Program 
Manager and PHP Program Manager.  Throughout the week, Emergency Medical Services plans 
and processes were included in the simulated exercises.  Two different scenarios were exercised 
during the course of the week, one relating to a hazardous materials incident and the larger 
exercise depicted a 6.3 earthquake in South West Reno.  In addition to learning about the 
different disciplines within the region and the various plans utilized during an emergency 
response, the course provided an opportunity for networking amongst the regional partners. 



WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT 
OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER 

DISTRICT HEALTH OFFICER STAFF REPORT 
BOARD MEETING DATE: December 18, 2014 

DATE: December 5, 2014 

TO: District Board of Health 

FROM: Kevin Dick, District Health Officer 
(775) 328-2416, kdick@washoecounty.us 

SUBJECT: District Health Officer Report - Integrated Emergency Management Course, 
REMSA/EMS, Ebola Preparedness, Regional Business License and Permits Program, 
Community Health Needs Assessment, Fundamental Review, Staffing, Other Events 
& Activities and Health District Media Contacts. 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 
Integrated Emergency Management Course 
I participated in a Regional Integrated Emergency Management Course and Exercise, November 17-
20 at the FEMA Training Center in Emmitsburg, MD.  Bob Sack, Jeff Whitesides, and Christina 
Conti also participated from the Health District with about 70 other local jurisdiction and organization 
partners.  The event was organized by the County Emergency Manager, Aaron Kenniston, and FEMA 
funded the travel and training.  During the course we received training from an elite group of 
instructors and exercised response to a hazmat incident and response to, and recovery from, a 
magnitude 6.3 earthquake.  The course provided an excellent opportunity to test response plans, and to 
work collaboratively with regional partners.  I will show some slides from the event during the DBOH 
meeting.   

REMSA / EMS 

The second meeting of the Regional EMS Advisory Board meeting occurred on December 4.  EMS 
system response data from July –September 2014 was presented. 

Ebola Preparedness 

The Health District continues to work with hospitals, healthcare providers, EMS agencies and other 
regional partners to provide information and distribute or develop protocols for use in the event a case 
of Ebola Virus Disease presents in our community. Active monitoring of people who have traveled in 
countries in which Ebola outbreaks are occurring is expected to be a regular occurrence over the next 
few years until the spread of the disease in these countries has been eliminated. CDC is working with 
hospitals in states with many travelers arriving from these countries or which have significant 
populations from these countries to prepare Ebola treatment hospitals.  CDC’s teams have completed 
this work with hospitals in Sacramento, Oakland, and San Francisco. 
Regional Business License and Permits Program 

The Oversight Group met on December 2 for an update on the status, timelines, budget and 
accomplishments of the project to date.  The Group agreed not to make any changes to the Interlocal 
Agreement or Accela contract at this time. (Fundamental Review Item 7) 

1001 EAST NINTH STREET / P.O. BOX 11130, RENO, NEVADA 89520 (775) 328-2410 FAX (775) 328-3752 
www.washoecounty.us/health 

WASHOE COUNTY IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

DBOH AGENDA ITEM NO. 17.E.



DHO Division Director Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  
Page 2 of 3 

Community Health Needs Assessment 

Work continues on the Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) through the Nevada Public 
Health Foundation’s Independent Contractor, Heather Kerwin. The CHNA is expected to be 
completed by the end of December 2014. The Truckee Meadows Healthy Communities Conference 
will be held on January 8th 2014.  Registration for the conference is open 
at http://www.truckeemeadowshealthycommunities.com/.  

Stakeholder organization partners are surveying community members and conducting focus groups 
for community input into potential projects within the 89502 zip code area, which might be discussed 
during the Conference on January 8th.  (Fundamental Review Item 14) 

Fundamental Review 

Progress continues: 

• Evening immunizations on the first third and fifth Wednesdays of the month began on
December 3.  It was great to see the counter open and people waiting in the lobby for
immunizations after 5 pm.  I am very appreciative of staff willingness to flex hours in
order to make this possible. (Fundamental Review Item 4)

• Staff completed the initial pilot cost/benefit analysis of the Administrative Health
Services Office for Board review. (Fundamental Review Item 10)

The current dashboard on progress implementing of the Fundamental Review recommendations 
implementation is attached. 

Staffing 

Recruitments are underway for a Health Educator and a Public Health Emergency Response 
Coordinator. Two Public Health Nurse and an Environmental Health Specialist Trainee positions were 
filled. 

Other Events and Activities 

I met with the Division Directors/Supervisors on December 3 and with Division Directors on 
December 17.  I conduct individual meetings with the Division Directors, Communication Manager, 
and QI Coordinator on a bi-weekly schedule.  My monthly meeting with the County Manager 
occurred on December 5. 

I participated as a server at the re-instituted Washoe County Employee Recognition breakfast on 
December 3. 

I attended the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation Grant Cross Jurisdictional Sharing Site Visit meeting 
and Churchill County Board of Health Meeting in Fallon on December 9. 

A Land Development User Group Meeting was held at BANN on December 11. 

A New Employee Orientation to the Health District was held on December 15. 

http://www.truckeemeadowshealthycommunities.com/


DHO Division Director Staff Report 
Board Meeting Date:  
Page 3 of 3 

I continue to serve as President of HomeFree Nevada / EnergyFit Nevada, the not-for-profit Home 
Performance with Energy Star Provider for the State of Nevada.  

Health District Media Contacts: November 13 - December 8, 2014 

DATE MEDIA REPORTER STORY 

11/26/2014 Reno Gazette Journal Jeff De Long Proposed Ozone Standards - Inouye 

11/21/2014 UNIVISION Laura Calzada Food Safety for the Holidays - Seals 

11/21/2014 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Brad Horn Food Safety for the Holidays - Franchi 

11/18/2014 KTVN CH2 - CBS Reno Landon Miller 
Food, Handwashing and 
Environmental Cleaning - Ulibarri 

11/12/2014 UNIVISION Ivet Contreras Free Health Care - Ulibarri 

Press Releases/Media Advisories/Editorials 

11/26/2014 Media Advisory PIO Ulibarri First Yellow Burn Code Advisory 



12/9/2014

Legend:

Status Goal
1 Place WIC organizationally where it is most closely aligned with similar functions

a. WIC moved to CCHS effective 1/21/14
2

a. Design an orientation program and compile a draft manual
3 Strengthen customer focus, exploring the potential for user groups to share consumer viewpoints

a. Land development user group established
4 Critically examine clinic appointment scheduling from a patient access perspective

a. Staffing IZ five days a week, accept IZ walk ins on a limited basis
b. Extended IZ hours established.  Consider opportunities and costs for weekend clinical services
c Staffing Vital Statistics five days a week
d Discussion has begun with Interactive Voice Response software companies

5 Update fee schedules and billing processes for all clinical and environmental services
a. Third-party billing service began July 1, 2014
b. Identify costs for permits and services that could be included in fee schedules/propose 
c. Identify costs for regulatory programs that could be included in fee schedules/propose 
d. Identify community and clinical services for which reimbursement is available/bill

6 Explore tiered level of services for Environmental Health programs and inspections
a. Consider the desire & support for this type of tiered structure and this item within the larger context

7 Participate in the business process analysis across all building permitting in the county
a. ILA and contract with Accela signed.  16-month implementation proceeding.

WASHOE COUNTY HEALTH DISTRICT

Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

Not Recommended

Complete
Underway

Underway - Regulatory, Budget, Policy Analysis or Issue Resolution Necessary or in Process
Underway but Progress Stalled or Delayed

Not Yet Underway - No Changes Necessary
Parking Lot

December 9, 2014

Develop a DBOH orientation manual and program



Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

12/9/2014 2

8 Develop infrastructure to support the District Health Officer
a. The Office of the District Health Officer was established on July 1, 2014

9
a. Time coding in EHS has been expanded, AQM timecoding is underway. CCHS timestudy occuring.

10
a. A proposed schedule approved on June 26, 2014 by DBOH.  Pilot analysis of Administration completed.

11 Perform assessment of needed administrative and fiscal staffing to increase efficiencies
a. Will be performed in conjunction with program const analysis.  See 10a

12 Demonstrate a concerted effort among all parties to address tensions regarding overhead/direct costs
a. Additional General Fund transfer provided in FY 15 adopted budget to support unrecoverable indirect costs.

13
a.
b. Assess changes in service levels and program alignment with respect to CHA CHIP, SP or funding

14 Conduct a CHA in concert with current partner organizations
a. The CHA is being conducted and should be completed by year end.

15 Develop metrics for organizational success and improved community health
a. In FY15, continue to identify metrics that help to manage programs and resources and tell our story

16 Continue current collaborative action plan to resolve REMSA oversight issues
a. Franchise Agreement approved, Regional EMS Oversight Program and Advisory Board estblished.

17
a.
b.

18
a. Completed January 16, 2014.  Determine future schedule to repeat

19 Undertake an organizational strategic plan to set forth key Health District goals and objectives 
a. Conduct a strategic planning initiative following the completion of the CHA and a CHIP

20
a. Use results of program cost analysis, performance metrics and SP to develop & implement performance mgmt. system

21
a. This is not a recommendation for staff action

22 Take a greater leadership role to enhance the strong current State/Local collaboration
a.
b. Seek direction from DBOH on a greater leadership role

Implement time coding for employees

Perform cost analysis of all programs

Align programs and services with public demand

Maintain current levels of local and state financial support

Shifted home visiting resources to provide additional clinical services on June 1, 2014

Action on this recommendation is captured under Recommendation 12 above
Advocate sustaining or enhancing funding through State agencies

Conduct a governance assessment utilizing NALBOH criteria

Health District efforts to focus on internal and local issues

Implement a performance management system

Consider alternative governance structures



Fundamental Review Recommendation Status

12/9/2014 3

23 Develop an organizational culture to support quality by taking visible leadership steps
a. Cross-Divisional Q-Team established and Div. QI projects conducted. Additional mgmt. training completed.

24
a. Seek DBOH direction on this recommendation once the CHA, CHIP and the SP are completed

DBOH - District Board of Health
NALBOH - National Association of Local Boards of Health

Acronyms: IZ - Immunizations

SP - Strategic Plan
QI - Quality Improvement

Seek Public Health Accreditation Board accreditation

ILA - Interlocal Agreement
CHA - Community Health Assessment
CHIP - Community Health Improvement Plan


	Agenda
	5. Approval of Draft Minutes
	November 20, 2014

	7. Resolution
	Breastfeeding Welcomed Here

	8. Consent Agenda
	A. Air Quality Management
	a. Lennar Reno LLC
	Staff Report


	B. Budget Amendments / Interlocal Agreements
	1. Medical Director Services
	Staff Report

	2. Subgrant Award
	Staff Report

	3. Approve Amendments
	Staff Report



	9. REMSA
	Reports

	10. REMSA Board of Directors
	Staff Report

	11. 2015 Meeting Calendar
	Calendar

	12. New Health District Logo
	Staff Report

	13. Financial Review
	Staff Report

	14. Budget Preparation
	Staff Report

	15. Cost Analysis
	Staff Report

	16. 2015 Legislative Session
	Staff Report

	17. Staff Reports and Program Updates
	A. AQM
	Report

	B. CCHS
	Report

	C. EHS
	Report

	D. EPHP
	Report

	E. ODHO
	Report





